
 
Descendants of Robert Stanfield1 

 
 

Generation No. 1 
 

1.  ROBERT
1 STANFIELD was born circa 1702.  He married FRANCES MERRYWEATHER.  She was born circa 

1705. 
 
Notes for ROBERT STANFIELD: 
Patent Book 13, page 272   311 acres in Prince George, Va., Card #83 Land Office Patents 13 Oct 1727 
George the second To all~ know Ye that for diverse good Causes and Considerations but more Especially 
for and in Consideration of the Sum of thirty ffive Shillings of good and lawful Mony for our use paid to 
our Receiver General of our Revenues in this our Colony and Dominion of Virginia We have given granted 
and Confirmed and by these presents for our heirs and Successors do give grant and Confirm unto Robert 
Stanfield of Prince George County a certain tract or parcel of Land Containing three hundred and Eleven 
Acres lying and being on the upper Side of Mawhipponock Creek in the County foresaid and bounded as 
followeth (to wit) Beginning at John Ellingtons Corner upon the Creek thence along his line North forty 
two degrees West two hundred and eighty two poles to William Hoas Corner thence North thirty five 
degrees West sixty six poles along his line to Hall Hudsons Corner thence North fforty degrees East one 
hundred and twenty four poles along Hudsons line thence East twenty three and half degrees South one 
hundred and ninety four poles to a hiccory in Spairs line thence South thirty seven degrees and half East 
one hundred and sixteen poles to his corner thence East thirty seven and half degrees South one hundred 
and thirty four poles to Mawhipponock Creek up the Creek one hundred and twenty poles to his 
Beginning~  With all To have hold To be held Yielding and Paying Provided In Witness Witness our 
Trusty and Wellbeloved William Gooch Esq. our Lieut Governor and Commander in chief of our said 
Colony and Dominion at Richmond under the Seal of our said Colony this Thirteenth day of October one 
thousand Seven hundred and twenty Seven in the first year of our Reign           ~~  William Gooch 
 
 
  
Children of ROBERT STANFIELD and FRANCES MERRYWEATHER are: 
 i. MARY2 STANFIELD, b. 6 Jan 1724. 
2. ii. WILLIAM STANFIELD, b. circa 1730; d. 1806, SC - Abbeville District. 
 iii. MILLIAM STANFIELD, b. circa 1731. 
 iv. THOMAS STANFIELD, b. 1732. 
 
 

Generation No. 2 
 

2.  WILLIAM
2 STANFIELD (ROBERT

1) was born circa 1730, and died 1806 in SC - Abbeville District.  He 
married SARAH [ ] STANFIELD..  She died Aft. Jul 1805. 
 
Notes for WILLIAM STANFIELD: 
NC / Randolph County: 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 201. 9/08/1784- Thomas Ingram to William STANFIELD for 100 
pounds...300a on Big River or Creek crossing Poplar Branch/s/ Thomas Ingram Wit:Nathaniel Steed, 
Benjamin Fuller (A William H. Ingram married William of Wayne's daughter Mary in Wayne Co., and 
moved with her to Izard County.  Haven't check this Ingram's background. -RDH) 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 3, Page 68. 12/18/1786- William STANFIELD to John STANFIELD for 100 
pounds...300a on Big Creek /s/ William STANFIELD Wit:Saml Rich, John Mills  (John Mills is likely 
John Miles who married William's daughter Peggy, sister to Capt. John. -RDH) 

                                                 
1 This is the work of Pat Foster (pjf1946@cox.net), September 2009. 
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Recorded WB No. 1, Page 326, Abbeville, SC.  Proven 15 August 1806. 
 
WILL OF WILLIAM STANFIELD 
In the name of God Amen ~ I William Stanfield of Abbeville District & State of South Carolina, being 
afflicted in body But of sound disposing Mind and memory, calling to Mind my mortality do here make my 
last Will and testament, hereby revoking all my former Wills. 
 
Imprimis, I bequeath my soul to God (in humble hopes of his mercy through Jesus Christ) and my body to 
the Earth as tuching my Worldly Estate which it hath pleased God to bless me With, I give and bequeath in 
the following Manner at the discresion of my Executors 
 
Item, I will that my well beloved wife Sarah Stanfield do peaceably and Quietly, Enjoy all my estate Both 
real and personal during her Natural life, and then to be divided as I shall hereafter nominate, to wit. I will 
that fifty dollars be paid to my son John Stanfield at the discresion of my executors 
 
Item I will that my Negro Titus shall have the privilige of Choosing his master on the following conditions, 
that is to say, the said person that Titus doth choose for his Master [after the decease of my wife] shall pay 
to my executors the appraisment of said negro, appraised by two disinterested persons- which said money 
to be Equally divided amongst the after named legetees 
 
Item I will that all the ballance of my estate both real and personal be equally divided between the after 
named Legetees, To wit, Robert Stanfield, Jane Hitt, Peggy Miles and Milley Link 
 
Item I give to Thomas Link five shillings, to be paid after the decease of my beloved wife Sarah Stanfield, 
at the descrecion of my executors - 
 
And I do hereby disallow, Revoke, Disanull all and singular every other form or forms, wills and bequeaths 
by me in any manner or case before mentioned.  Ratifying this and no other to be my last will and 
testament; and I do hereby nominate appoint and Constitute my trust friends Peter Hitt and [Howard Collin 
and Jo_ __a Hill crossed out] John Miles my Executors to this my last will & testament ~ In witness 
whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal this ninth day of July one thousand Eight hundred and five 
Signed and Sealed in the presents of 
Henry [his X mark]Beasly 
John [his X mark] Milton  {Miles?} 
William [his X mark] Link" 
 
 
~~~~~~~~~~ 
GenForum posts  
1/06/2000: 
Hello Stewart, I am hoping that your Robert of the 1700's will lead to my Russell Robert Stanfield, born 
January 25, 1892 in Altoona, AL. He married Beulah Mary Hubbard in March 1929 in Gadsden,AL. They 
were divorced by 1937. Thanks.....Eleanor..fmeg@earthlink.net 
 
~~~~~~~ 
by Mary Lu Nelson Johnson   hellomlu@bellsouth.net: 
5/07/2000 
One possibility for your ancestor would be George R. Stanfield who was in the Sand Mountain area ca 
1835-1858. George R. Stanfield was a son of Rev. War soldier John Stanfield who married Sarah Roberts. 
She received Widow's pension #6215. I found a record of George R. having divorced 1827 in Newton Co., 
GA from Elizabeth, "a non-resident", Newton Co., GA. Superior Court. Also notice was in Southern 
Recorder, Milledgeville, GA 12-3-1827. George's mother Sarah was living with him in Bellefonte, DeKalb, 
Jackson Co., AL in the mid 1830s. George was in Hendricksville/Hendrixville, Southern DeKalb Co. AL in 



 - 3 -

1852 (not far from Etowah Co.); Marshall Co. 1854, in Madison Co., AR 1859. 1850 U.S. Census, DeKalb 
Co. p 353 lists: George R. Stanfield 49 M (p.o.b. Unknown); Ireny 36 F b GA; Pulaski D. 16 GA; Sarah E. 
14 AL; Parthena E. 11 AL; Emily M. 9 AL; William W. 7 TN; Anna J. 4 TN; Sarah E. Stanfield 92 VA. 
From the letters in Sarah's pension file, George R. appears to have been well educated. This is not my direct 
line, and have not researched later descendants, but was searching for a connection to my David Stanfield 
and wife Elizabeth "Betsy" who were in Jackson Co., AL by 1819 or earlier. 
 
 
6/03/2000 
For ancestors of Russell Robert Stanfield, you may want to get the Rev. War pension file of Capt. John 
Stanfield's widow, Sarah (nee Roberts) Stanfield. Their son, George R., was living for some time in 
Marshall & Etowah Cos., AL. His widowed mother Sarah Stanfield lived with him. There are many letters 
in the file written by George R. George R. lived in GA, AL, MS, AR, then I understand may have returned 
to AL. 
 
6/04/2000: 
Was hoping you had evidence of my brick wall David, b ca 1790, on Jackson Co., AL U.S.C. 1830. Wife 
Elizabeth "Betsy" b ca 1795 KY or TN a founding member of Mud Creek Baptist Church of Christ in 
Jackson Co., AL 1819, living Shelby Co., AL 1850, No AL later. Looks for all the world like the (Quaker) 
David & Betsy Beals/Bailes Stanfield m 1815 WC, TN and removed to Indiana, but am told it's not. 
 
From 'The Hollingsworth Collection', on microfilm at Wallace State Community College, Hanceville, AL, I 
found a record of divorce: George R. Stanfield: "Rule nisi, Newton Co. Ga. Superior Court, in re George R. 
Stanfield vs Elizabeth Stanfield, petition for divorce. Defendant Elizabeth is a nonresident. - Notice in 
SOU. RECORDER, Milledgeville, 12-3-1827." 
 
From same 'Hollingsworth Collection', there are STANFIELD index cards:  
(1) "JOHN: Wit B/S Randolph Co NC 1788 by Thos Ingram, qv, to Wm Hamilton." 
(2) "PATSEY: Mar. George Lester, qv, Oglethorpe Co Ga 1807" 
(3)"TEMPERANCE: Married Wm. Fountain 1810-1850: Montgomery Co., Ga. Marriages" 
(3) "WILLIAM W.: Mar. Caroline Rushing; Tattnall Co Ga Sept 11, 1856" 
 
6/05/2000: 
George R. who divorced Elizabeth in Newton Co., GA Superior Court could be one & same as married to 
Irene. It's certainly possible; Ireny was age 36 in 1850 (born 1814); considerably younger than George, on 
DeKalb Co., AL U.S.C., page 353. The number for her age isn't that easy to interpret, and you really have 
to compare letters. It looks like either age 26 or 36 - but she surely didn't have eldest son Pulaski D. at age 
10. They probably married sometime between 1828-1833. 
 
DeKalb, AL 1850 U.S. census, p 353: 
George R. Stanfield 49 p.o.b. unknown 
Ireny 36 Ga 
Pulaski D. 16 " 
Sarah E. 14 Ala 
Parthena E. 11 " 
Emily M. 9 " 
William W. 7 Ten 
Anna J. 4 Ten 
Sarah A. Stanfield 92 Va 
 
~~~~~~ 
By Stewart Stanfield   stewarts@gdtcorp.com 
Murray Co., GA 1849 
De Kalb Co., AL 1850-52 
Marshall Co., AL 15 Mar 1854 
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Head of Household in Census in 1840, Murray County 
 
George R. Stanfield 
Male 5-10 (1) *researching name* 
Male 10-15 (1) *Pulaski* 
Male 30-40 (1) *George* 
Female Under 5 (3) *Sarah, Parthena, Emily* 
Female 20-30 (1)*Irena (second wife)* 
 
 
Head of Household in Census of 1850, Civil Divn 25, DeKalb Co, AL; p.353, household #371 
 
George R Stanfield M 49 Farmer $100 Unk 
Irena F 36 GA 
Pulaski D M 16 GA 
Sarah E F 14 AL 
Parthena E F 11 AL 
Emily M F 9 AL 
William W M 7 TN 
Anna J F 4 TN 
Sarah F 92 VA 
 
The wife is alleged by some researchers to be his second, named Irena Pulaski Davenport, hence the name 
of the son shown here. 
Record via the image on Disk 1 of CD#453. 
 
As one can see from the birthplaces of the children, this family moved around a bit. Mary Lu Johnson has 
posted on GenForum that she has found a record on microfilm showing from publication in the _Southern 
Recorder_, Milledgeville, GA, 3 Dec 1827, George R Stanfield filed for divorce from his first wife 
Elizabeth in Newton Co, GA Superior Court. 
Defendant was a non-resident [of Newton County ??]. 
 
The Census finding noticed above is quite nice. When Sarah Roberts applied for a RW pension as widow of 
John Stanfield in 1835, she specified that she was living with her son George. She survived until 1854 and 
thus the Census finding definitively proves who this George was. 
 
 
LAND PATENT FOR WILLIAM STANDFIELD AUGUST 20, 1760  
PATENT BOOK 33, PAGE 865, LUNENBURG COUNTY, VA(LATER MECKLENBURG) 
                                               (Father of John Stanfield) 
William Standfield )    George the second~To all ~Know ye that for diverce good causes and 420 Acres                
)     Considerations but more especially for and in Consideration of the Sum of Forty five Shillings of good 
and Lawful money for our  there paid to our Receiver General of our Revenues in this our Colony and 
Dominion of Virginia~We have Given Granted and confirmed and by these Presents forever our Heirs and 
Successors Do Give Grant and Confirm unto William Standfield one Certain Tract or Parcel of Land 
Containing Four hundred and seventy Acres lying and being in the County of Lunenburg on the Lick 
branch of Turnip Creek and bounded as followeth to wit~ Beginning at a Corner white Oak thence South 
Four hundred and seventy one Degrees East sixty poles to a Corner white Oak thence South thirty five 
Degrees West one hundred and ninety five poles to a Corner white Oak thence North eighty four and an 
half Degrees East forty poles to a corner red Oak thence South forty six Degrees East sixty poles to a 
Corner red Oak thence North forty eight and an half Degrees East one hundred and ten poles to a Corner 
black Gum thence North eighty Degrees East sixteen poles to a Chestnut thence North twenty five Degrees 
East one hundred and eighty poles to a Corner white Oak thence North eight Degrees West one hundred 
and sixty poles to a Corner white Oak thence North seventy six Degrees West one hundred and sixteen 
poles to a Corner pine thence South eighty Degrees West ninety four poles to a Corner Oak thence South 
fourteen Degrees West eighty two poles to a Corner red Oak thence South twenty three Degrees East fifty 
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five poles to the Beginning~With all To have hold To be held Yeilding and Paying Provided In Witness 
Witness our Trusty and wellbeloved Francis Fauquier Esq. our Lieutenant Governor and Commander in 
Chief of our said Colony and Dominion Williamsburgh under the Seal of our said Colony the twentieth day 
of August one thousand seven hundred and sixty in the thirty Fourth year of our Reign.                 
 ~Francis Fauquier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Children of WILLIAM STANFIELD and SARAH STANFIELD. are: 
 i. ROBERT3 STANFIELD. 
 ii. ELIZABETH STANFIELD, b. circa 1753; m. THOMAS LINK. 
 iii. JANE STANFIELD, b. Bef. 1763; m. PETER HITT. 
 iv. MARGARET "PEGGY" STANFIELD, b. Bef. 1763; m. JOHN MILES. 
 v. MILLY STANFIELD, m. WILLIAM LINK. 
3. vi. JOHN STANFIELD, CAPTAIN, b. circa 1745, Prince George County, Va; d. 5 Nov 1805, SC - Abbeville 

District. 
 
 

Generation No. 3 
 

3.  JOHN
3 STANFIELD, CAPTAIN (WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was born circa 1745 in Prince George County, Va, and 

died 5 Nov 1805 in SC - Abbeville District.  He married SARAH A. ROBERTS 16 Feb 1777 in Halifax 
County, Virginia, daughter of WILLIAM ROBERTS and SARAH ADDISON.  She was born 1 Dec 1757 in 
Halifax County, Virginia, and died 3 Feb 1854 in AL - Marshall Co.? Living in DeKalb Co with son 
George on 1850 census. 
 
Notes for JOHN STANFIELD, CAPTAIN: 
NORTH CAROLINA 
Colonial & State Records of North Carolina, Vol 20:120, 121, 147, 152, 167, 180, 240, 246, 276, 285, 288: 
John Stanfield was one of two elected representatives from Randolph County to the NC General Assembly 
held at Tarboro (now in Edgefield County) in Nov-Dec 1787. The other representative from Randolph 
being Edmund/Edward Waddell. They were sworn in on Nov 19, 1787. On the 27th John presented a 
petition of Alexander Smith and Baptist Clark, and also presented the resignation of Nathanial Stead as one 
of the Justices of the Peace for Randolph County. The rest of the citations are Nov-Dec 1787 votes for or 
against certain petitions or bills. In any case, we once again find Capt. John ranging far 
afield of his Randolph County homestead. 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 21. 3/29/1780- State Grant to John STANFIELD 400a on both sides 
of Second Creek to Rowan Co. line. 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 51. 6/12/1784- John STANFIELD & SARAH his wife, to Samuel 
ROBERTS for 40 pounds...400a on waters of Second Creek /s/ John STANFIELD.  (Samuel Roberts was 
Sarah's brother-RDH)   
 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 205. 8/18/1785- Abednego Moore to John STANFIELD for 75 
pounds...200a on Uwarie adj. Miller /s/ Abednego Moore Wit:Nathaniel Steed, William Carter 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 3, Page 68. 12/18/1786- William STANFIELD to John STANFIELD for 100 
pounds...300a on Big Creek /s/ William STANFIELD Wit:Saml Rich, John Mills (William Stanfield is 
John's father according to his 1805 will prvoed 1806 in SC/Abbeville. John Mills is likely John Miles who 
married William's daughter Peggy, sister to Capt. John. -RDH) 
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Randolph County Deed Book 3, Page 225. 8/25/1787- State Grant to John STANFIELD 160a on Uwarie 
River adj. Robins and Miller.  Confiscated land of Henry Eustace McCullough 
 
12/17/1788 
Randolph County Deed Book 5, Page 168. - John STANFIELD to John Stafford both of Randolph Co. for 
125 pounds, 360a on waters of Big Creek & Poplar Branch /s/ John STANFIELD Wit: Tricia Stafford, 
Alex Patterson 
 
 Duplin County, NC, October 22, 1779. Petition to split the counties of Balden, Duplin, and New  
 Hanover contains the signatures of John Stanfill and William Harvell. 
 Randolph County, NC, land transactions by John Stanfield: 
 Randolph County, NC,  Deed Book 2, Page 21. 3/29/1780- State Grant to John STANFIELD 400a  
 on both sides of Second Creek to Rowan Co. line. 
 Randolph County, NC,  Deed Book 2, Page 51. 6/12/1784- John STANFIELD & SARAH his wife, to  
 Samuel ROBERTS for 40 pounds...400a on waters of Second Creek /s/ John STANFIELD 
 {Samuel Roberts was John's brother-in-law.} 
 Randolph County, NC,  Deed Book 3, Page 68. 12/18/1786- William STANFIELD to John  
 STANFIELD for 100 pounds...300a on Big Creek /s/ William STANFIELD Wit:Saml Rich, John  
 Mills 
 Know all Persons Whom it may concern that I John Stanfield of No Carolina in the County of 
Randolph for & in  
 consideration of the Sum of one Hundred & forty Pounds of Lawful mony of Sd. State to me in hand 
paid by  
 George Lucas of the Sd. County the Receipt Whereof I do herby Acknowledge have Bargained Sold & 
Delivered  
 & by these Presents According to law{word law lined through} the Due form of Law do bargain Sell 
& Deliver  
 unto the Sd. George Lucas two Negroes Bet and Rachel Sold up by my Consent with  my Seal to have 
& to Hold  
 the Sd. bargained Negroes unto the Sd. George Lucas his Exc. Adm. & Assigns forever & I the Sd. 
John  
 Stanfield for myself My Exc & Adm. the Sd. Bargained Negroes unto the Sd. George Lucas his Exc. 
Adm. &  
 Assigns aganst all Persons Shall & Will Warrant & forever Defend by these Presents In Witness: 
Whereof & unto  
 Set My hand & Seal this Second day of August 1790~    John Stanfield {Sec} 
 State of No Carolina  } Sept. Term 1790~ 
 Randolph County       } The Execution of this bill of Sale was Duly Acknowledged in Open Court & 
Ordered to be  Recorded. 
 Copy Test                     J Harper Clk                  Recorded in book A Page 45 
 
 State of North Carolina Randolph County 
 This Indenture made this 17th Day of December in the year of our Lord one thousand Seven Hundred 
& Ninety  
 Between John Stanfield of the State of No Carolina & County of Randolph of the one part & John 
Stafford of  
 Guilford County & State Affsd. of the Other part Witnesseth that for the Consideration of ten pounds 
to me in hand  
 paid by the Sd. John Stafford the Receipt Wharof is hereby Acknowledged by the Sd. John Stanfield to 
the Sd.  
 John Stafford one Certain tract or parcil of land Lying & being in the County Affsd. on the Watters of 
Uharee  
 Beginning at a pine Corner oon Pattersons Line & Runs West thirty four poles to a White Oak in the 
Old line of a  
 Tract of Land Granted to Joseph Moore thence North Suposed to B. 160 ps. to a post Oak in the 
Widow  
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 Andrews Line thence East 34 ps. on Sd. line to A Red Oak then South Supposed to B 160 poles to the 
Beginning  
 Containing thirty four Acres be the Same More or Less Together With all Woods Watters Mines 
Minerals  
 hereditments & appurtence to the Sd. Land Belonging as appurtaining to hold to the Sd. John Stafford 
his Heirs &  
 Assigns forever Yielding & paying to the State Such Sums of Mony yearly or otherwise as our General 
Assembly  
 Shall from time to Time Shall or May direct Provided Always that the Sd. John Stafford Shall Cause 
this Deed to  
 be Registered in the Registors Office Within the time Limited by Law & the Sd. John Stanfield Doath 
hereby  
 Warrant & forever Defend the Above Granted Lands to the Sd. John Stafford his Heirs & Assigns 
forever In  
 Witness Whereof I have here to Set my hand & fixed my Seal the Day & year above Written 
 State of North Carolina} 
 Randolph County         } May Term 1797 
 The Execution of the within Deed of Conveyance was Duly proved in Open Court by Samuel Rich & 
ordered to be  
 Registered 
 Copy Tese                J Harper Clk 
 
 This Indenture Made this 7th Day of August in the year of our Lord 1795 Between John Stanfiled of 
the one part  
 & William Hall of the other part Both of the State of No Carolina & County of Randolph ?? that for 
the  
 Consideration of five pounds to me in hand paid by the Sd. William Hall the Receipt  ?? do hereby 
Acknowledge  
 to the Sd. William Hall one Certain Tract or parcel of Land being in County of Randolph on the 
Waters of Uharee  
 & on the East Side of the ??  ridge Beg~ at a pine corner to patterson & Running South fifty Eight 
Chs{Chains?} to  
 a post oak Bounded by Patterson thence West Six & a half Chs to a White Oak thence No 58 Chs to a 
Stake thence  
 6 1/2 Chs to the Beg~ Containing fifty seven Acres & a half be the Same More or Less Together With 
All Woods  
 Watters Mines Minerals hereditments & appunterances to the Said Land Belonging or appurtaining to 
Hold to the  
 Sd. William Hall his Heirs Assigns forever yealding & paying to the State yearly or otherwise arranged 
assembly  
 Shall from time to time May direct provided always that the Sd. William Hall shall Cause this Deed to 
be  
 Registered in the Registors Office Within the Time Limited by Law in Testemony Whereof I have unto 
Set my  
 hand & fixed by Seal the Day & year above Written. 
 State No Carolina    } 
 Randolph County    } February Term 1795 
 The Execution of the Within Deed of Convayance Was Duly Proved in open Court by Kidd Cranford 
and ordered  
 to be Registered.         Copy Test              J Harper   Clk 
 
4/03/1794   Randolph County Deed Book 
This Indenture made this third Day of April in the year of our Lord one Thousand Seven Hundred & Ninety 
four Between John Stanfield of the State of South Carolina Lawrence {(sic) Laurens} County & Wm 
Ragsdale of the State of North Carolina & County of Caswell Witnesseth that for & in Consideration of the 
Sum of thre Hundred pounds to me in hand paid by the sd. William Ragsdale to the Said John 
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Standfield(sic) the Receipt thereof is hereby Acknowledged by the Sd. John Stanfield to the Sd. William 
Ragsdale one Certain Tract or parcel of Land Lying & Being in the County of Randolph County on Both 
sides of the Uharee River Beginning at a post oak in the Line of Robins Land & Running South Seventy 
West forty four Chains to a Black Oak then South Twenty two & a half Chains to a White Oak on the River 
Bank then South thirty four East Down Sd. River Nine Chains then S. forty five East thirty one Chains 
Bounded by Millers to a Black Oak in his line thence North Sixty East Crossing the River to a Stake thence 
North two Hundred & three poles to a post Oak thence North Eighty one West in Chains to a Black Oak 
thence to Continue the Same Course to the River thence up the River to a Stake in McCollah Old Line 
thence North Crossing the River to the Beginning Together With all Woods Waters Mines Minerals 
hereditments thereunto Belonging or appertaining to Hold unto the Sd. William Ragsdale his Heirs & 
assigns forever & the Sd. John Stanfield doath hereby Convenant & agree to and with the Said William 
Ragsdale Shall & May forever herafter peacbly & Quality have Hold use Occupy poses & Enjoy the Before 
Granted Lands & Tenement Without threat or Molestation of any person or persons Whatever free & Clear 
of All persons Whatever & the Sd. John Standfield(sic) doath Oblige himself his Heirs Exc. Adms. & 
Assigns Shall & Will Warrant & forever Defend the Before Granted Lands from Me My Heirs & Assigns 
to him the Sd. William Ragsdale his heirs & Assigns forever.  In Witness thereof I the Sd. John Standfield 
have hereunto Set my hand & fixed my Seal the Day & Year Above Written In presents of Sign & Sealed 
& ?? 
Isum Fuller 
Andrew Mackleroy                                                J Stanfield {Sec} 
State N. Carolina  } July Term 1795 
Randolph County } The ?? of the Within Deed was Duly proven in open Court by Andrew Mackroy & 
Ordered to be Registered. 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 1, Page 134. 11/05/1794- Simm Gerin, Esq., High Sheriff of Randolph Co. to 
Wm Bell for £1,217.13.4 pounds by writ from Halifax, 4/25/1794, commanding him to sell  chattel & lands 
of Robert McLean, John STANFIELD, Robert Reading, Pearce Noland, Phillip Roddy & Dennis Hopkins.  
Sells land of Robert Reading 300a on Back Creek to Wm Bell /s/ Simon Gearn Wit:J. Clark, J. Harper 
 
NC/Randolph Land recap :  
Seems likely the sale of William's 300 acres to son John in 1786 marks William's move to South Carolina.  
John sold his 400 acre state grant to brother-in-law Samuel Roberts.  He then bought 200 acres from 
Abednego Moore, 300 acres from his father, and another state grant for 160 acres, for a total of 660 acres.  
He sold 360 acres to John Stafford in 1788 when he moved to South Carolina, leaving 300 acres 
unaccounted for.  Sarah was apparently married by now, did she and husband get part of this 300????? 
 
SOUTH CAROLINA  
Laurens County: 
DB E,page 124 12/6/1793 - 2/17/1794 Langston DREW & w. Nancy to John STANFIELD for 150 pounds 
stg. 150 a. on Beaverdam Cr. b. on Andw RODGERS, Jeremiah GLENN, GOOD's corner, Jas. CLARDY. 
Wit: Silvanus WALKER, Joshua ROBERTS. Joseph DOWNS, J.P.  
 
1794 
Laurens County, SC DB H,page 129 8/9/1794-2/21/1806. John STANFIELD & w. Sarah to Isaac 
MITCHELL of Abbeville Co. for 100 pounds; 150 a. on Beaverdam Cr. of Little R. whereon J.S. now 
lives. b. on Jeremiah GLENN, James CLARDY. Wit: Z. Rice, A. RODGERS Junr., John RANY, Wm 
MITCHELL, J.Q.D.R. of Sarah STANFIELD. 
 
1790 
John Stanfield would join his father in Abbeville by 1800, but in 1790 he was in Randolph County, NC. 
1790 RANDOLPH COUNTY, NC 
Stanfield, John    1  3  4 
John                        |   |  | 
3 boys                          |  | 
Richard                       |  |                
William    1787            |  | 
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Unknown                    |  | 
4 females                       |  
Elizabeth  1778             | 
Sarah Roberts 1780   | 
Jane       1786                | 
Sarah 1779-84?           |       
 
1800 ABBEVILLE COUNTY, SC 
John Stanfield             4    1   0   0   1     1   1  0  0  1     00 
5 male minors were   |     |              |      |    |                no slaves 
George                           |     |             |      |     |  
(Robert was DECEASED)|            |      |     |           | 
James                            |     |              |      |     | 
Peter                              |     |              |      |     | 
John                               |     |              |       |     | 
William ______________ |              |       |     |          | 
John, Sr. __________________    |       |     |          | 
Polly c1790_____________________  |     |          | 
Jane 1786 _________________________ |          | 
Sarah Roberts___________________________| 
(Not sure where daughter Sarah is at this point, apparently already married and possibly still in North 
Carolina. RDH) 
 
(Next door is Richard, son of John & Sarah-RDH) 
Richard Stanfield 0 0 1 0 0    1 0 1 0 0     00 
 
From his father William's will written Jul 1805 proved SC/Abbeville Aug 1806: 
Item, I will that my well beloved wife Sarah Stanfield do peaceably and Quietly, Enjoy all my estate Both 
real and personal during her Natural life, and then to be divided as I shall hereafter nominate, to wit. I will 
that fifty dollars be paid to my son John Stanfield at the discresion of my executors.... 
 
1805-06 
Abstracts of Old Ninety-Six and Abbeville District Wills & Bonds: 
STANFIELD, John - Box 87, Pack 2145 
Est. Admnr. Dec 12, 1805 by Richard, Sarah STANFIELD, Edward COLLIER unto Andrew HAMILTON 
Ord. Abbeville Dist. sum $5,000.00. inv. made Jan. 2, 1806 by Joshua HILL, Leonard WIDEMAN, 
Andrew CROZIER, sale Jan. 3, 1806. BUYERS: Sarah STANFIELD Jr., Edmond BROWN, John 
TALBERT, Sarah STANFIELD Sr., Lewis FREE, Jesse BARKER, Richard STANFIELD, Joshua HILL, 
Richard BEAZLEY. {Note:  Sarah "Jr." is probably the widow of John ... Sarah "Sr." would be the widow 
of John's father William. John and Sarah's daughter Sarah was not in their 1800 census household, and was 
presumably married by that time.} 
 
~~~~~~~ 
E-Mail from Stewart Stanfield  stewarts@gdtcorp.com 11/03/00: 
This is what I have in my notes.  I have a paper copy of his wives pension 
request/record. 
 
John Stanfield was a Revolutionary War Captain.  He and his wife, Sarah Roberts Stanfield, had at least 12 
children. John and Sarah Roberts were married by the Rector of the Protestant Episcopal Church. 
 
John entered the Revolutionary War from Guilford County, NC as a Private, promoted to Lieutenant, and to 
Captain under the command of Captain Arnold, Major Crump and General Caswell.  He served from the 
time he entered until the close of the war.  He was in the Battle of Guilford County Courthouse. After the 
war, John lived in Randolph Co., NC (formerly a part of Guilford County, NC).  In 1787 he was an elected 
member of the House of Commons of the General Assembly of North Carolina, representing Randolph 
County. Some years later, he moved to what was known then as Abbeville District, SC, today this is 
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Laurens County, SC.  John died in Laurens on 11-08-1805. 
 
After John's death, his widow, Sarah moved to Murray County, GA, to live with her youngest son, George 
R. Stanfield. 
 
This information was obtained from an application for a pension  (Pension *W6215) which Sarah made 
July 12, 1848 based on the fact that her husband was an officer and served in the Rev. War.  The pension 
was effective March 4, 1848 in the amount of $93.33 per annum.  This record is in the National Archives in 
Washington, D.C.  The record also states that Sara resided with her son George R. Stanfield in Dalton 
(Murray Co.), GA on July 12, 1848.  In 1849, this son's address was Van Buren (DeKalb County), Al.  She 
was living with him on Sand Mountain in Marshall County, Alabama, when she died on February 3, 1854.  
Sarah was 97 years old. 
 
See notes for William Stanfield (John's father) for information about his will. 
 
State of North Carolina | 
Secretary's Office           | I do hereby certify that this and the foregoing           sixteen sheets of Paper 
contain a true Extract of all the Grants of Confiscated 
property recorded in this office. Given under my Hand this 29 day of April 1788 
                                                          W. Williams D. Sec. 
 
[North Carolina Historical Commission, English Records, Treasury Papers,. . 
. Reports on land grants of confiscated property, 1787-1788. Audit Office. Class 12, Vol. 91.] 
 
RANDOLF COUNTY, NC 
Date of Sum Sold Names of Former Proprietors  Number of Acres  Names of the 
Grant Purchasers For 
'86 Aug.  25      
Robert Palmour               272               
John Standfield               356 
'86 Aug.  25      
Henry E. McCulloch        160                
John Stanfield                  355 
 
Census of 1800 
John Stanfield, Abbeville District, P. 31. 
Believe William was living with John during his time period as John is shown 
as head of household.  By 1800 the old districts had been abolished and the 
old counties changed to Districts. 
 
mar 16, 1804. 
Abstracts of Old Ninety-Six and Abbebville District Wills and Bonds, 
Abbeville, SC - John is mentioned of probate inventory of William vickery, Box 93, Pack 2317 
 
 
Abstract of Rev. War pension files, Page 3292 
John Stanfield, NC Line, Sarah, W6215, sol lived in Guilford Co NC at enl & 
afterwards lived in Randolph Co which was formerly a part of Guilford Co NC 
& in 1787 he was a member of the House of Commons of the Gen'l Assembly of 
NC & some yrs later sol moved to Abbeville Dist SC where he d 8 Nov 1805, 
sol had m Sarah (--) 16 Feb 1777 in Halifax Co VA & she was b in Dec 1757, 
one Issac George of Murray Co GA stated in 1848 that he was intimately 
acquainted with the "Roberts" family into which John Stanfield had married & 
he stated their family along with the Stanfield & Roberts families all moved 
from NC, after sol's death his wid moved from SC to GA, wid appl 12 Jul 1848 
at Dalton in Murray Co GA where she lived with her son George R. Stanfield & 
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in 1849 this sons's address was at Marshall Co AL, sol & wife had 12 
children as follows; (1) Elizabeth the 1st child was b 19 Jan 1778, (2) 
Richard who m Martha Grimes & he d prior to 1848 leaving his wid Martha, (3) 
Sarah, (4) William who was b 2 Feb 1787 in Randolph Co NC & in 1848 lived in 
Wayne Co TN, (5) Jane b about 1786 in Randolph Co NC & in 1848 she was 
referred to as Jane Ewing & lived in Tallapoosa Co AL, (6) Robert who d at 
age of 9 yrs, (7) Polly who was b about 1790 & she m James West in 1809 & 
lived in Wayne Co TN in 1848, (8) John no data, (9) Peter who d shortly 
before maturity, (10) James no data (11) George R. with whom wid lived & 
(12) Fanny b in 1803 in SC & in 1848 she was referred to as Fanny Gray, the 
son George R. Stanfield made inquiry 7 Feb 1859 from Madison Co AR. 
 
>From 'The Hollingsworth Collection', on microfilm at Wallace State Community 
College, Hanceville, AL:  index cards (1) "JOHN: Wit B/S Randolph Co NC 1788 
by Thos Ingram, qv, to Wm Hamilton." 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 201. 9/08/1784- Thomas Ingram to William 
STANFIELD for 100 pounds...300a on Big River or Creek crossing Poplar 
Branch/s/ Thomas Ingram Wit:Nathaniel Steed, Benjamin Fuller 
(A William H. Ingram married William of Wayne's daughter Mary in Wayne Co., 
and moved with her to Izard County.  Haven't check this Ingram's 
background. -RDH) 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 2, Page 205. 8/18/1785- Abeduego Moore to John 
STANFIELD for 75 pounds...200a on Uwarie adj. Miller /s/ Abeduego Moore 
Wit:Nathaniel Steed, William Carter 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 3, Page 68. 12/18/1786- William STANFIELD to John 
STANFIELD for 100 pounds...300a on Big Creek /s/ William STANFIELD Wit:Saml 
Rich, John Mills 
(John Mills is likely John Miles who married William's daughter Peggy, 
sister to Capt. John. -RDH) 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 3, Page 225. 8/25/1787- State Grant to John 
STANFIELD 160a on Uwarie River adj. Robins and Miller.  Confiscated land of 
Henry Eustace McCullough 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 5, Page 168. 12/17/1788- John STANFIELD to John 
Stafford both of Randolph Co. for 125 pounds, 360a on waters of Big Creek & 
Poplar Branch /s/ John STANFIELD Wit:Tricia Stafford, Alex Patterson 
 
Land recap : 
Seems likely the sale of William's 300 acres to son John in 1786 marks 
William's move to South Carolina.  John sold his 400 acre state grant to 
brother-in-law Samuel Roberts.  He then bought 200 acres from Abeduego 
Moore, 300 acres from his father, and another state grant for 160 acres, for 
a total of 660 acres.  He sold 360 acres to John Stafford in 1788 when he 
moved to South Carolina, leaving 300 acres unaccounted for.  Sarah was 
apparently married by now, did she and husband get part of this 300????? 
 
John Stanfield would join his father in Abbeville by 1800, but in 1790 he 
was in Randolph County, NC. 
 
1790 RANDOLPH COUNTY, NC 
Stanfield, John 
John 
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3 boys 
Richard 
William    1787 
Unknown 
3 females 
Elizabeth  1778 
Sarah Roberts   1780 
Jane       1786 
 
Randolph County Deed Book 1, Page 134. 11/05/1794- Simm Gerin, Esq., High 
Sheriff of Randolph Co. to Wm Bell for 1,217.13.4 pounds by writ from 
Halifax, 4/25/1794, commanding him to sell  chattel & lands of Robert 
McLean, John STANFIELD, Robert Reading, Pearce Noland, Phillip Roddy & 
Dennis Hopkins.  Sells land of Robert Reading 300a on Back Creek to Wm Bell 
/s/ Simon Gearn Wit:J. Clark, J. Harper 
 
You would have to look at the Court records of Halifax, Co., [VA, I presume] 
to determine what precipitated the writ ordering the Sheriff of Randolph Co, 
NC to sell these properties.   It could result from any kind of judgment 
including divorce and/or confiscation for participation in losing side of 
Revolution.   Thus you would need to check to know the particulars and they 
might be different for each individual named. 
 
The writ is referenced in the deed to prove that the sheriff had the right 
to sell the property in question.  The writ covered both real estate and 
chattels.  Chattels are generally used as a legal term to describe personal 
property or movables as opposed to real estate (or land which is not 
movable, of course).   It is a catchall that could have covered livestock, 
wagons, tools, crops, furniture, etc. 
 
It is possible, I suppose, that upon removing to South Carolina, Capt. John 
executed a Power of Attorney, which he left in hands of some relative in 
Halifax County.  The P of A would have given them legal authority to sell or 
otherwise dispose of John Stanfield's remaining property in Randolph Co., 
NC.  That person may have then gone into Court in Halifax County and using 
the Power of Attorney, convinced a Judge to sign a writ to have the local 
Sheriff in NC handle the situation. 
 
1800 ABBEVILLE COUNTY, SC 
John Stanfield 
 
STANFIELD, John - Box 87, Pack 2145 
Est. Admnr. Dec 12, 1805 by Richard, Sarah STANFIELD, Edward COLLIER unto 
Andrew HAMILTON Ord. Abbeville Dist. sum $5,000.00. inv. made Jan. 2, 1806 
by Joshua HILL, Leonard WIDEMAN, Andrew CROZIER, sale Jan. 3, 1806. 
BYRS:Sarah STANFIELD Jr., Edmond BROWN, John TALBERT, Sarah STANFIELD, Sr., 
Lewis FREE, Jesse BARKER, Richard STANFIELD, Joshua HILL, Richard BEAZLEY. 
Since  both John and father William are deceased at this point,  it would 
appear that Sarah STANFIELD, SR., is the widow of William and Sarah 
STANFIELD, JR., is Sarah Roberts, widow of John. 
 
 
E-Mail from Roger Harvell 10/20/00: 
Just back from Abbeville, a few new names mentioned in John Stanfield's papers. Alas, no mention of 
Sarah or her hubby. New names mentioned were debts paid by the estate from Jan thru Apr of 1806: 
Thomas & George Gray  (Have some interest here, a George Gray was the grandfather of Rachel Gray who 
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married Joseph Love Byler in Izard County. P. Roberts-no doubt an in-law of John's) ... Wm Stanfield, Sen. 
( I assume this is to his estate, although it ain't completely clear) ... Charles Sample ... Ephraim Barker ... 
Joshua Patterson ... William Link ... John Burdeshaw ... James Dileshaux ... John J. Gibert .... Augustin 
Davis .... Isaac Moragnie ... David Cotton ... Thomas Mann ... Francoss R. & L.R. Ducerqucel? ... John 
Martin ... Dabny Pucket ... Ben. Glover.  
 
 
Notes for SARAH A. ROBERTS: 
Proof of John STANFIELD and Sarah ROBERTS marriage: 
Deed Book 10, Page 154. Deed of gift, William Roberts to dau. Sarah STANFIELD and husband John 
STANFIELD, 1777. 
 
 When Sarah Roberts applied in Murray County, GA, for a RW pension as widow of John Stanfield in July 
1848, she specified that she was living with her son George. She survived until Feb 3, 1854. He son George 
applied in Marshall County, AL, for letters of administraytion of her estate, for which he posted an $80 
bond - "about twice the value of the estate". 
 
 
E-Mail from Roger Harvell 7/18/2000: 
Found Sarah (Roberts) Stanfield 1820 in Maury County, Tn:  
Sarah Standfield   000100    00101  
That's a male 18-26, a female 16-26 and presumably Sarah over 45.  Other family nearby John, Leah, Neill, 
Thomas, William, and Jonathan Stan(d)field.  No Har*ls nearby that I saw.  Looked everywhere I could 
think of for Noah Harwell with no luck.  
 
From: "Michael Flanagan" <michael.prs@pdq.net> 
 
1. I know the GenForum stuff says Sarah R. applied for her pension in 1835, 
but (as you will see) her application was in 1848 - not 1835. One of the 
acts granting pensions to indigent widows was in 1835 - maybe that's the 
source of the confusion. That solves the problem of her not being in 
George's 1840 household, but doesn't explain where she was in 1840. Musta 
been with one of her other kids. 
 
2. 1840 Hickman is indeed odd. Gotta be her grans - but who the parents are 
is beyond the scope of my crystal ball. One hipshot assumption could be that 
The Crankster's parents were dead, and that this is Sam and sisters, but 
that would not be consistent with Sarah being one of the 8 children of Sarah 
R Standfield still alive in 1848. Don't know what to make of this yet. We 
have some decent TN/Maury and/or Hickman records - I forget which, has been 
a couple years since I looked at them - that I'll get into this weekend. 
 
3. Agree that Robert was dead by 1800. Since Jane said Robert was younger 
than her, and William said Robert was older than he/William, I assume Robert 
could have been between Jane and William, but that would work only if Jane 
turned 63 in 1848 - but after her deposition - and was therefore born in 
1785, with Robert in 1786 and William in Feb 1787. If Jane was born in 1785, 
as seems likely, then Sarah was born NLT 1784. In any case, Robert was fer 
sure a gonner by 1800, and the GenForum info of his birth as c1799 was just 
an uninformed guess. That calls into question the other estimated years of 
birth, with the exception of Jane, because hers is based upon something 
solid. We have the actuals for Elizabeth, William and Frances. 
 
4. Sarah d/o John & Sarah was married by 1800. Depending upon when she was born in the 1779-84 time 
frame, I would guess her marriage to be 1795-1800. The 
Crankster must have siblings, and probably several - assuming we have the 
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right Sarah Stanfield! Sam was probably one of the youngest (if we are to 
belive his approx. year of birth as c1814), and could have named his kids 
after some of his siblings - especially the daughters. 
 
5. These Stanfields owned no slaves. Neither did Cranky, as we know from 
census records and now also from the AR/Izard tax records for 1861, in which 
he was taxed for his land, one horse and himself. These Stanfields moved 
around a lot after John's death - so did Cranky. So far, everything fits ... 
but "so far" ain't exactly what we're trying to accomplish. Still, it's 
encouraging. Maybe we can triangulate Har*l-Stanfield-Watson in the 
early/mid 1830s, assuming Crank & Margt married 1835-36. Hickman and 
vicinity looks like a good place to start, altho the apparent high degree of 
mobility of these folks makes them awfully slippery. 
 
Timelines: 
According to affidavit of Jane (Stanfield) Ewing filed July 5, 1848 in Tallapoosa County, AL, she was the 
fifth child born, including an unnamed infant who died in infancy. Jane was age 62 at the time of the 
deposition (thus born c1786). Her older siblings were Elizabeth (born in Jan 1778), Richard (who married 
Martha Grimes - she lived in Georgia after his death), Sarah and the infant. The family moved from 
Randolph Co NC to SC Abbeville when Jane was nine - thus about 1795. Her younger siblings were 
William, Polly, John, Peter, James, Robert, George and Frances. 
 
All of these 8 children lived to maturity, with the exception of Robert, who died at about age nine. All of 
the remaining 7, six were still living at the time of Jane's affidavit, the exception being Peter. In short, at the 
time 
of Jane's July 1848 deposition, 2 of her 8 younger siblings were no longer alive, and 2 of her older siblings 
- Richard and one other - were no longer alive, unless Jane has factored out the unnamed infant. From the 
affidavit, it is not entirely clear whether "all lived to maturity" applies to just Janes's younger siblings, or to 
ALL of her siblings, but from other testimony, it appears that all, with the exception of the unnamed infant 
and Robert, lived to be adults. And that means daughter Sarah lived to maturity.  
 
Jane's younger brother William also filed an undated (presumably 1848) affidavit, in Wayne County, TN, 
in which he said he was then 61 years old, and was born on Feb 2, 1787 (he would therefore have been 61 
years old in 1848). He said his parents had ten children (who he named) beside himself (he forgot about 
older sister Elizabeth and the unnamed infant). Older siblings were Richard who married Martha Grimes, 
Sarah, Jane and Robert (!), and six younger siblings - Polly, John, Peter, James, George and Frances. All 
siblings lived to maturity except Robert who died at age 9. All the others were still living, except Richard 
and Peter, at the time of the affidavit. 
 
The significance of this is that, in mother Sarah's July 1848 pension application submitted in Murray 
County, GA, she says that she had twelve children (evidently excluding the one who died in infancy), and 
that ten lived to maturity (Robert did not, according to prior affidavits by Jane and William, and one other 
evidently did not) - Sarah also declared that eight of the children were still alive. We know that Richard, 
Robert and Peter were already deceased by 1848, according to the affidavits of Jane and William. I assume 
that the oldest, Elizabeth, was also not alive in 1848, because William did not name her as a sibling, 
suggesting she had been dead for some time. That means that daughter Sarah was probably also still alive 
in 1848. If so, and assuming she lived to 1854, then she and her heirs would be legal beneficiaries of her 
mother Sarah's estate (no matter how small the estate), which I assume was administered in Marshall 
County AL, because that is where George Stanfield filed for letters of administration in 1854. 
 
Other thoughts: 
The daughter Sarah must have been born 1780-85. The family moved to SC by 1794, where they lived until 
at least 1805, and possibly a few years after. It is not clear when the widow moved to Georgia, or who went 
with her. My guess is that daughter Sarah was married in SC if she was in her early 20s - if she was married 
later than that, anything is possible. Would recommend finding these Stanfields in Abbeville District in 
1800 and maybe 1810 and see how the daughters in family structure shapes up. Of the five daughters, we 
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have: 
Elizabeth born 1778 
Sarah born 1779-85 
Jane born 1786 who married a Ewing 
Polly born c1790 who married James West 
Frances born 1803 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
From: Karan Harvell  
To: Michael Flanagan  
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2000 4:33 PM 
Subject: Alabama 
 
Michael, I finally heard from Alabama.  After 5 weeks and $20, I got a wrong number to call at the 
Marshall County Courthouse and an Index with Sarah's name a #322 and a box #93.  The Courthouse put 
me in touch with a nice lady, Betty Taylor, who says she'll go down and peek in the box for us and let me 
know what, if anything, she finds.  
 
 
More About JOHN STANFIELD and SARAH ROBERTS: 
Marriage 1: 16 Feb 1777, Halifax County, Virginia 
Marriage 2: 16 Feb 1777, VA - Halifax County (Antrim Parish) by the Rector of the Protestant Episcopal 
Church 
  
Children of JOHN STANFIELD and SARAH ROBERTS are: 
 i. ELIZABETH4 STANFIELD, b. 19 Jan 1778, NC - Halifax Co.. 
4. ii. RICHARD STANFIELD, b. 1780. 
 iii. SARAH STANFIELD, b. circa 1782; d. Aft. 1850; m. JAMES MILLER. 

 
Notes for SARAH STANFIELD: 
For some time it appeared Sarah might have been the mother of Samuel Harvell who married Margaret 
Watson, but it now seems unlikely... 
 
THE SARAH STANFIELD/JAMES MILLER MARRIAGE 
I came into possession of Dad's papers a couple of years ago and among those papers was a note that 
Samuel Harwell/Harvell's mother was Sarah Stanfield.  Try as I might, I couldn't find a source for this 
note except for a vague reference about an Izard County Historian article by a descendant of George 
Lafayette "Uncle Fayte" Harvell.  Our dear cousin, Kay Peterson, has done an exhaustive search of all 
the back issues of the Historian without finding any reference to this fact. 
 
Quite some time ago Stewart Stanfield informed me that Wesley Smith had said that Sarah was married 
to James Miller in South Carolina.  I contacted Wesley and he said that his source was one Margaret 
Moffitt.  I was never able to make contact with Margaret. 
 
So, I was left with a mystery.  If Sarah married James Miller, how could she be Sam's mother? 
 
We do know that there is a relationship with Sarah's brother William in Izard County and that he 
married (at a considerable age) to the relatively young widow of William A. Watson.  William A. 
Watson was the brother of Margaret Watson who married our Samuel Harvell.  We also have record of 
several of William's descendants in the Izard and Stone county area of north Arkansas.  We know that a 
descendant of Sarah's brother John married Stephen H. Moss in Izard County.   Stephen H. Moss was 
the brother of my great-grandmother, Mary Frances Moss who married William Harvey Moser and 
Sarah Elizabeth Moss who married Samuel "Wilson" Harvell.  Stephen's wife was Mary F. "Molly" 
Stanfield, the daughter of William Stanfield and Elizabeth Woody.  This younger William Stanfield 
was the son of John S. Stanfield, Sarah's brother. 
 
We know from the 1860 and 1870 Izard County census that this was William Stanfield, a Baptist 
preacher, and that the family of William A. Watson was in his household in 1870.  And the above 
indenture proves that Mary and he were man and wife. 
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Here is what I have found: 
 
It is a well established fact that Sarah's grandparents were William and Sarah Roberts.  We have 'deed 
of gift' records from Halifax County, Virginia, that identify three of their daughters and their husbands.  
It is clear from other research that the wife of Richard Shackelford was another: 
· Miller, Haman Roberts, Frances Deed of gift, William Roberts to dau. Frances Miller and husband 
Haman Miller, 1778. DB 8, p. 116.  
· Miller, Jacob Roberts, Martha Stovall Deed of gift, William Roberts to dau. Martha Stovall Miller and 
husband Jacob Miller, 1778. DB 11, p. 4. 
· Stanfield, John Roberts, Sarah Deed of gift, William Roberts to dau. Sarah Stanfield and husband 
John Stanfield, 1777. DB 10, p. 154. 
· Additionally, William's daughter, Mary, married Rev. Richard Shackelford. 
 
 
John Stanfield and Sarah Roberts are, of course, the parents of Sarah who is the focus of this research. 
 
Haman Miller, who married Sarah's aunt Frances "Fanny", is the father of James Miller who was said to 
have married Sarah.  Haman Miller's will names his wife and children: 
 
In the name of God amen. I Haman Miller Senr of the County of Randolph and State of North Carolina, 
being very sick and weak in body but of sound and perfect mind and memory blessed be God. But 
knowing that it is appointed for all men once to die, do make and publish this my last will and 
testament, this twelfth of July in the year of our lord one thousand eight hundred and fourteen, in 
manner and form following (that is to say) principally and first of all I give and recommend my soul 
into the hands of Almighty God who gave it and my body to the earth to be buried in a decent and 
Christian manner, at the discretion of my executors, and as touching such worldly estate where-with it 
has pleased god to bless me in this life, I give devise and dispose of the same in the following manner 
and form (to wit) first--it is my will that a just and true inventory of my personal estate shall be made 
by my executors, and also that all of my just debts shall be paid out of the moneys on hand and if not a 
sufficiency that they be paid out of my personal estate as aforesaid- 
Item-I leave for the use of my wife Fanny Miller all the tract of land whereon I now live with the 
plantation and improvement thereon, also all of my household furniture, plantation tools and stock 
consisting of horses, cattle, sheep, hogs, etc. except such part thereof which may be considered 
necessary to be sold and which she may not have particular need of, in order to discharge my just debts 
and other necessary expenses. Also I leave for the use of my beloved wife the following negro slzves 
(viz) ben, Frank, Sal, Ralp, Bob, Isaac, Danile and Ame. All the afore mentioned property both real and 
personal I say I use and benefit of her my beloved wife only for and during her natural life or 
widowhood, and then the afore mentioned property to devolve and become the property of my heirs and 
none other, to be equally divided betwen all of my children namely Peter Miller, Patty Fuller, wife of 
Archibald Fuller and Sally Wade wife of Henry F. Wade, except the land with its improvemtns and 
appurtenances as above mentioned which in case my beloved wife should live should marry or after her 
decease, I give and bequath as follows, first I give and bequeath to Jones F. Miller son and heir at law 
of my son Jacob Miller and Zella his wife, all that part of said tract of land lying east of a line drawn 
beginning at a sycamore the corner of my land upon the bank of Jackson's Creek running three poles up 
the hill to a dead pine thence nearly north to where the way leading from where I live to my still house 
crosses the Fayetville road from thence a direct course, leaving the still house to the right hand to 
Archibald Fuller's line, whereone the plantation where my son Jacob Miller now lives with its 
improvements. I give to him the said Jones F. Miller to him and his heirs forever. Also I give to my son 
James Miller at the time of the marriage or the decease of my beloved wife Fanny Miller all of the part 
of the said tract of land lying west of a line drawn beginning on Jackson Creek where it intersects 
Haman Miller's line thence down the creek to my spring branch thene a direct course to the mine 
springs thence a direct course to the head of the draw of branch which runs down near the old meeting 
house and down said branch or drain to the mouth thereof and so a direct course to the line. I give to 
him and his heirs forever. Also I give to my son Jacob Miller at the time above mentioned all that part 
of my said tract of land, lying between the said lines as aforesaid and including the plantation whereon I 
now live with its improvements, I say I give and bequeath the same to him the said Jacob his heirs and 
assigns forever.  
Item- I give and bequeath to Jones F. Miller son of the said Jacob Miller and Zella his wife one Negro 
girl named Zilpha to him and his heirs forever.  
Item- I give and bequeath to my beloved son Peter Miller one Negro boy named Alex to him and his 
heirs forever.  
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Item-I give and bequeath to my son Thomas Miller one Negro boy named Wetty to him and his heirs 
forever.  
Item-I give and bequeath to my beloved grandson Thomas Miller son and hier of the aforesaid Haman 
Miller and Frankey his wife one negro boy named Barton to him and his heirs forever.  
Item-I give and bequeath to my son James Miller one Negro girl named Hannah to him and his heirs 
forever.  
Item-I give and bequeath to my son Jacob Miller one Negro slave named Phil to him and his heirs 
forever.  
Item-I give and bequeath to my beloved daughter Patty Fuller wife of Archibald Fuller one Negro 
woman named Jude to her and her heirs forever.  
Item-I give and bequath to my beloved daughter Sally Wade wife of Henry F. Wade one Negro girl 
named Vine to her and her heirs forever. Likewise it is my will and desire that my tract of land lying on 
Jackson's Creek above William Ridge's containing one hundred acres to be sold to the highest bidder 
also my still and utensils thereunto belonging also be sold and the moneys arising therefrom the sales 
thereof to be applied to the use and benefit o my estate to defray the ordinary expenses that may accrue. 
Likewise it is my will and desire that the suit which is now pending in the Superior Court of Equity for 
the County of Randolph, wherein I myself am complainant and James Daniel and others are defendants 
should be prosecuted with effect. And in case a recovery is made against them thereone, that the profits 
arising therefrom be qually divided between all my children. Namely Peter Miller, Hannah Miller, 
James Miller, Jacob Miller, Patty Fuller wife of Archibald Fuller and Sally Wade wife of Henry F. 
Wade.  
And I hereby make and appoint my beloved wife Fanny Miller Executrix and my beloved son Haman 
Miller and James Miller Executors of this my last will and testament. In witness whereof I the said 
Haman Miller SEnr. the testator have hereunto set my hand and seal the day and year first above 
written.  
Signed sealed and acknowledged by Haman Miller the Testator in the presence of us who were present 
with each other at the time of signing and sealing and acknowledging hereof. 
 Josiah Lyndon  
Stephen Henley  
B. J. (F?) Brookshire  
 
It is plain to see that there is a close relationship between the Millers and the family of Sarah's mother 
and that Sarah and James Miller were first cousins.  The following petition for divorce transcribed by 
my friend Susan Gall of North Carolina proves that James Miller and Sarah were married: 
 
Millar, James and Gilly (Fullar), Petition of James Millar of Randolph County states that in the year 
1792, he "accidentally happened to call at the house of Brittain Fullr of said county in the evening ...." 
said Fullar and his family engaged themselves in making "the petitioner so drunk that he was insensible 
of anything that passed, and while your petitioner was in that situation, the said Fullar....caused a 
magistrate, who was a brother to the said brittain Fullar, to consummate the marriage ceremony 
between your petitioner and a certain Gilly Fullar daughter to....said Brittain when your petitioner was 
so far intoxicated that he was...unable to stand without assistance..." The next morning, after you 
peitioner was informed of what had taken place, he "remonstrated with the said Fullar against the 
illegality of their proceedings...as he never had paid his addresses to the said Gilly Fullar or shown any 
signs of attachment to her." The said Fullar offered your petitioner a 
considerable quantity of property if the petitioner would acknolwedge said Gilly as his wife and live 
with her as a husband. Your petitioner rejected this offer and advertised the facts stated in this petition 
in different parts of said county, forewarning all persons from giving said Gilly credit on his account. 
Your petitioner removed to the state of South Carolina and remained there until the said gilly 
intermarried with Robert Arnold of said Randolph County, by whom she has had several children. Your 
petitioner, not considering himselve bound by the fraudulent marriage to said Gilly, intermarried with 
SARAH STANSFIELD of South Carolina, who has borne him five children, vix., Alfred, James, John, 
Peter and Martin Millar. Upon being advised that the children may be considered illegitimate and 
deprived of their right of inheritance, your petitioner prays relief from his fraudulent marriage to said 
Gilly Fullar and a confirmation of his marriage to Sarah Stanfield, thus legitimizing the children. 
(Enclosures:) Depositions of Haman Millar, Esq., of Randolph County, 11 Dec. 1793, and of Rev. 
Richard Shackelford of Laurens County, South Carolina, 21 Aug. 1793, which support the details in 
James Millar's petition. (GASR Nov. - Dec. 1806, Box 2: folder "Petitions (Divorce, etc.)".) Committee 
of Divorce and Alimony to whom was referred the petition of....James Millar of Randolph County's 
prayer for divorced recommend (his) petition be rejected. Concurred in by House and Senate, 13 Dec. 
1806. (GASR Nov. - Dec. 1806, Box 2: folder "HCR") 
 



 - 18 -

The following provides additional evidence that makes it very likely that the Sarah who married James 
Miller was indeed "our" Sarah, the daughter of Captain John Stanfield. 
 
South Carolina )   
Laurens Distr )   
In compliance with a dedamies to us the subscribers Justice directed from the honorable Court of Law 
in Hillsborough District State of North Carolina we have caused to come before us at the house Jacob 
Miller, Mr. Richard Sheckelford, Mr. Solomon Fuller, Mrs. Sarah Roberts This 11th day of February 
1807  Mr. Richard Sheckelford being sworn as the Law directs saith about twenty-nine years ago he 
purchased a Negro Woman by the name of Bess of William Roberts Sen'r & borrowed five pounds of 
money from Haman Miller to make up full payment for said Negro & farther this deponent saith that he 
told said Haman MIller that he had purched said Negro Bess & that said Haman Miller heard that said 
Haman Miller had any Clame or Mortgage of said Negro for som years after he this Deponent had 
purched her. Sworn to & subscribed before us this 11th day of February 1807.   
signed: Richard Shackelford   
Zachariah Bailey, J. P.   
James McMahen , J. P.   
Mr. Soloman Fuller being sworn as the law directs sayeth that about nineteen or twenty years ago there 
was a precept put into his hands by Haman Miller & he levied it on a Negroe Girl by the name of Jude 
in the hands of the widow Roberts wife of William Roberts dec'd & sold to satisfy a debt of sd Wm 
Roberts dec'd & Haman Miller purchas'd her & he believ'd She was in the Mortgage that Miller had 
Sworn to & Subscribed before us this 11th day of February 1807  signed: Solomon Fuller  Zachariah 
Bailey JP )  James McMahen JP )  Mr. Peter Roberts beign sworn ast he Law directs sayeth that on oath 
that about 22 or 23 years ago he understood tha Haman Miller had a Mortgage against William Roberts 
for a number of Negroes & he heard Haman Miller tell s'd Roberts that he now had it in his power to 
Settle the Matter on good Terms & that he had Better do it as he was getting old & perhaps said he 
some time or other the Bond may Come & I shall have to Distress your Children this mortgage was 
given by William Roberts Sen'r to Haman Miller & Sam'l Roberts for Standing Security for s'd William 
Roberts for a Sum of money to a Scotch Merchant who then Lived in the State of Virginia but his name 
he does not recollect & the s'd Miller told the s'd William Roberts If he would give him two hundred 
pounds he would Clear him of the Scotch Merchant & he saw William Roberts after agreeing to pay the 
two hundred pounds pay down part of the money about fifty pounds & he saw money paid at other 
times in Consequence of s'd mortgage or Deed of trust but how much he does not recollect but he heard 
Haman Miller say that he had received all of the money & that he heard William Roberts ask him for a 
receipt in full of all Demands of Every kind & that s'd Miller told s'd William Roberts to write a receipt 
& that he the s'd Miller woud Sign it & s'd Roberts wrote a receipt & that s'd Haman Miller signd s'd 
receipt & that he this deponant was a witness to the same & then he heard Haman Miller some time 
after that Direct William Roberts how to dispose of the negroes that he gave to Isham Fuller & wife & 
he Done agreeable to his Directions in giving them away & further this Deponant says that he saw 
Haman Miller Deliver to his Father William Roberts the above mentioned Mortgage & that he heard 
Haman Miller Say that he was amply Satisfied for S'd Mortgage & further says that after the death of 
William Roberts he saw the S'd mortgage in among his Fathers papers & also the above mentioned 
Receipt & further this deponant Sayeth that he heard Sam'l Roberts tell William Roberts that he was 
amply Satisfied respecting the mortgage above mentioned & this Deponant says that he is neither 
gainer nor looser inthe Event of the Sute wherin Haman Miller & Samuel Roberts are plantiff & James 
Daniel Defendant. Sworn to & subscribed before us this 11th Day of February 1807  signed: Peter 
Roberts  Zachariah Bailey, J.P. James McMahen J.P.  Mrs. Sarah Roberts being sworn as the law 
directs Sayeth on her oath that she heard her husband William Roberts Sen'r Demand of Haman Miller 
a mortgage or Deed of trust which her husband William Roberts had given to S'd Haman Miller for 
several Negroes & that S'd Haman Miller Said that he would give it to him as soon as he could find it 
among his papers further this Deponant says that one of the Family or Issue of S'd family mentioned in 
the Deed of trust above mentioned was Executed by an officer for S'd Haman Miller & sold & S'd 
Haman Miller purchasd the S'd Negro. Sworn to & Subscribed before us this 11th Feby 1807  Sarey 
(her S mark) Roberts  Zachariah Bailey JP  James McMahen JP  State of South Carolina  Laurens 
District  We the Subscribing Justices for the District afores'd do here by Certify that the above 
Dipositions taken before us the Day and Date above mentioned & at the house of Jacob Miller's. Given 
under our hands & Seals this 11th Day of February 1807  Zachariah Bailey JP  James McMahen JP  
Georgia State )  Jackson County )  By virtue of a Didamus to us directed by the honourable Court of 
Hillsborough District in North Carolina we have cause to come before us, William Bailey, Esq'r after 
duly Sworn as the law directs saith as follows, that some time in the year one thousand Seven hundred 
& eighty three or four as well as he can recollect, he the S'd Bailey had an Execution against Peter 
Roberts, son of William Roberts and he directed the officer to execute a negro Boy named Simon then 
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in possession of William Roberts his father, which the said Bailey thought to be the property of Peter 
Roberts and the S'd Bailey Said that he went to the house of the S'd William Roberts and the S'd 
William Roberts and Sarah his wife Said that the negro boy named Simon and several other Negros 
then in their possession was Mortgaged to Hamon Miller for becoming security for the Said William 
Roberts for a large sum of Money which Debt was then unpaid, and that he the S'd Bailey could not 
execute and Sell any of the Said negros for they ware the property of Hamon Miller, also Peter Roberts, 
son of William Roberts told Said Bailey that the above mentioned negros was then the property of 
Hamon Miller till Said debt was paid and the said Bailey further saith that about the same time or some 
time before the negor girl named Clo was in the possession of William Roberts and also a negro woman 
named Jinny was said to be made over by the Same Mortgage to the S'd Haman MIller and the S'd 
Bailey further saith that Since that time he has seen the S'd negro named Clo in possession of James 
Daniels further the deponant Saith not, Answered subscribed and sworn to before us this twenty first 
day of March 1806   
William Bailey   
A___ Atchinson JP (seal)  
Agrippa Atchinson JP  
 
The following abstract appears to be concerning the same lawsuit and involves Sarah's brother William 
(Rev. Billy later of Wayne County, Tennessee and Izard County, Arkansas): 
 
In the Asheboro Public Library there is a copy of a legal proceeding of November 4, 1808, at the house 
of Josiah Lyndon in Randolph County, apparently a circuit court proceeding. William Stanfield, 
grandson of William and Sarah Roberts, and the son of John and Sarah (Roberts) Stanfield, gave sworn 
testimony by answering questions from the plaintiffs and the defendant. William, who according to the 
document, was born on February 2, 1788, said that in the summer of 1807 he had lived in the home of 
Jacob Miller in Laurens County, South Carolina, and had been in contact with his grandmother, Sarah. 
Sarah possibly was living in the Miller home with her son-in-law and daughter, Jacob and Martha 
Stovall (Roberts) Miller. It is not known what Sarah's view of the mortgage was, but the plaintiffs, who 
were her son and her son-in-law, were trying to establish that she was so elderly that she was incapable 
of managing her business. William, in reply to these questions, said, I suppose she is.  
 
The following census records confirm some of the players on this stage: 
1800 Randolph County, North Carolina 
Robert Arnold  20010   10010  
James Miller   20010   00100   
 
That is Robert Arnold who married the rejected Gilly Fuller and James and Sarah with their two oldest 
boys.  Sarah is listed as 16 to 26 years old having been born between 1774 and 1784.  This fits what we 
know of our Sarah. 
1810 Randolph County, North Carolina 
Robert Arnold    22010  32010 
James Miller     52010  00010 
 
One can see in 1810 that Robert and Gilly are still in Randolph and James and Sarah in addition to the 
five sons named in the divorce petition now have 2 more.  James Miller is not on the 1820 census of 
Randolph County and it appears that he may have moved back to Laurens County, South Carolina: 
JAMES MILLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   320001  00010       PAGE 16A 
JAMES MILLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   422201  20010       PAGE 14A 
HAMAN MILLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   300010  22010       PAGE 10A 
ARCHIBALD FULLER (1820 LAURENS SC)   300100  10100       PAGE  2A 
JOHN MILLER      (1820 LAURENS SC)   200010  11010       PAGE 12B 
PETER ROBERTS    (1820 LAURENS SC)   310001  22010       PAGE 25A 
JAMES ROBERTS    (1820 LAURENS SC)   100001  01210       PAGE 14B 
JACOB MILLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   000101  00101       PAGE 14B 
POSEY FULLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   000010  30010       PAGE 27A 
ROBERTS MILLER   (1820 LAURENS SC)   100010  20010       PAGE 27A 
JOHN ROBERTS     (1820 LAURENS SC)   510011  12010       PAGE 16A 
                  **SAME PAGE AS JAMES 1 
SARAH MILLER     (1820 LAURENS SC)   002000  00011       PAGE 27B 
SARAH STANFIELD  (1820 LAURENS SC)   000000  01001       PAGE 28B 
 
You may recall that Haman Fuller's daughter Patty married Archibald Fuller, I am uncertain of the 
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kinship between Archibald and Gilly who married James Miller. 
 
There is this additional note from the research of Donald George Brown: 
In 1829, 15 years after Haman's death there was in the Superior Court of Randolph County, North 
Carolina, and the Equity Court of Laurens County, South Carolina, a lawsuit of Haman Miller and 
James Miller, Exrs. of Haman Miller Deceased vs. Sarah Fuller, John Milam and wife Sarah, William 
Fuller, Jones Fuller, Patsy Miller, Peter Fuller, Jones Fuller and his wife Mary Ann, Archibald Fuller 
and Israel Fuller (Laurens County Equity Court, Box 14, package 14). It is from this long and labored 
document that the structure of the entire situation is revealed. The document was addressed To the 
Judge in Equity for the Supreme Court of Law for the County of Randolph, with Haman, Jr., and James 
claiming that the heirs of William Roberts were in possession of slaves which were collateral for the 
old deed of trust--the mortgage--the bond for William Cunningham and Company. The mortgaged 
slaves and some of their increase were named, some of which had been sold to individuals outside of 
the family. Haman Miller, Jr., and James Miller were asking the present owners to reimburse your 
orator what he has paid out.  
 
I looked this suit up on Laurens County Equity Court index yesterday, January 30, 2003, and the index 
list Haman and Jacob (not James) as petitioners.  I suspect that James was in Georgia based on the 
divorce record of George R. Stanfield (Sarah's brother) provided to me by Stewart: 
1828 Feb 27 Newton Co., GA (Recorded Newton Co, Georgia, Superior Court Vault, Record Book 
1827-1829) 
This petition of George R. Stanfield humbly showed that he is at this time lawfully married to a woman 
whom maiden name was Elizabeth Camp now legally Elizabeth Stanfield but who has for a long time 
to wit known for this space of seven years contrary to the marriage contract with your petitioner and in 
violation of all law having as well as divided after leaving the bed and board of your petitioner without 
any the least provocation lived and is now living in the state of adultery (sic) with one Thomas Holden 
of said State and lived (sic) became the mother of several children by said illegal connection with said 
Holden. And your petitioner further charges that it was some time in the year Eighteen hundred and 
twenty that she left his house last and had never returned and had always refused to return and live with 
your petitioner and his wife by reason of which said petitioner is deprived of the comfort and 
convenience of the Society and Services of a lawful wife. Wherefore your petitioner prays a trial in 
conformity with the constitution and laws of this State in such cases made and provided to the end that 
your petitioner and the said Elizabeth Stanfield may be absolutely divorced from each other and prays 
that a citation ? may? upon regaining the said Elizabeth in person or by attorney to be and appear at the 
next Superior Court held for said County there and then to answer your petitioner in a libel for divorce. 
[s/s] Julius C. Alford 
 
Georgia To the Sheriff of Newton County Greeting 
George R. Stanfield vs Elizabeth Stanfield. The defendant is hereby required personally or by attorney 
to be and appear at the next Superior Court to be held in and for the County of Newton on the fourth 
Monday in September and must there and then to answer the plaintiffs demand in an action of libel for 
divorce, as in default thereof the said court will proceed and Justice shall assertain [ascertain]. Witness 
the honorable Charles I McDonald Judge of said court this 24th August 1827. [s/s] John H. Trimble, 
Clk 
 
The defendant not to be found in this county this 27th [blank] 1827 [s/s] L P Macky ? Shefff George R 
Stanfield vs Elizabeth Stanfield libel for Divorce\ 
 
Testimony in the above case. 
Peter H. Stanfield sworn says that he was present at the marriage of the plaintiff and defendant in South 
Carolina in Abbeville District. They lived together about a month and an half. When she left him 
without any provocation that he remembers staid out all night & returned the next day & has not lived 
with him since. Sarah Stanfield Sworn says that she lived with her saw that she knows of no 
provocation which he gave his wife to leave him. One evening when he was gone from home She 
walked out and I came home about dark dusk & he asked her where she had been. She replied she had 
been about & about & he asked her a second time where she had been & she replied that he had always 
gone when he pleased and she intended to the same. He then said perhaps she might go when she 
pleased but not come when she pleased. She than began ?the Witness Supposed to separate the cloths 
which hung on a pole he then spoke to her and said she aught not to do so. She then quit pulling down 
& went out and Witness saw her no more till next morning when she returned & went into his brothers 
house but did not come into her own where he was. He had been bleeding at the nose all night and did 
not expect to live they did not speak together. She after a little while went off & spent all day & came 
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home in the evening got her clothes & went off & never came back to him again of her own accord. He 
went & coaxed her home once but she would not stay with him. Witness has seen defendant sit & as 
many as twice and lament having left Thomas Holden with whom and his mother she had lived during 
her absence from her husband. JAMES MILLER sworn Says defendant had a house built about a mile 
from his witness residence [NOTE: "witness" was probably added for clarification here and in the 
testimony of Sarah; i.e. whose house? Witness', but they didn't use parentheses] and had seen her and 
Thomas Holden then together in the daytime. There was a child then she afterward moved a way out of 
the settlement since which time he had seen her with two children besides the one, which she had when 
he first saw her. He inquired for Holden and she said he was at home. Witness did not know of Holden 
having any other home besides the house of Defendant. Eli Thornton sworn says that he had seen her in 
the road with a child. She said that she was living with Holden & that the children were his. [s/s] Esq. 
Charles I. McDonald Judge 
We find that sufficient proofs have been referred to our consideration to authorize a total divorce that is 
to say a divorce Vinci do matrimony upon legal principals between the parties in this case. 
 
Registered 10th March 1827 [s/s] Charles Kennan, Foreman 
 
Since the North Carolina Legislature denied the divorce petition between James Miller and Gilly Fuller, 
Sarah could have moved on and married a Harwell/Harvell, but I doubt it.  It is clear that Robert Arnold 
and Gilly Fuller moved their family to Bedford County, Tennessee, so it is a safe bet that James never 
accepted that marriage.   
Likewise, we know that George R. Stanfield married in South Carolina about 1820 and that James 
Miller was there at the time (we have that census record) living near George and that James later 
testified on his behalf in a Newton County, Georgia, divorce proceeding.  I see no reason to believe this 
was not the James who married Sarah, or at least his son, this indicating that the James Miller family 
moved to Georgia along with the Stanfields.  That being the case, it would appear that James and Sarah 
remained husband and wife at least until 1820/1829 and very likely longer.   
If that is the case, it would eliminate Sarah as a possibility for the wife of Williamson Harwell and the 
mother of our Samuel who was born circa 1813. 
 
It looks very much to me that the connection with the Stanfield family is (as I have suspected for some 
time) through our Moss and Watson families and not through the Harwell/Harvells  ~Roger Harvell 

 
 iv. INFANT STANFIELD, b. circa 1784. 
 v. JANE STANFIELD, b. 1786; m. [MR.] EWING. 

 
Notes for JANE STANFIELD: 
 
What follows is Jane (Stanfield) Ewing's deposition from JS's RW file, her 1850 census record and 
John Stanfield abstracts from Laurens County.  
Lots of John's Laurens neighbors mentioned, many of whom are becoming quite familiar.  
Anything from Saml Roberts, Greenville?  
Notes on Jane (Stanfield) Ewing:  
From the RW pension file of Captain John Stanfield:  
The State of Alabama     }                 Personally appeared before me  
Tallapoosa County         }                Leroy Gresham judge of the county  
court of said county Jain Ewing who resides in the county & state aforesaid  
werof being first duly sworn deposeth and saith that she is the daughter of  
John Stanfield & Sarah Stanfield his wife~ that she was born in Randolph  
County in the State of North Carolina & resided there with her Parents about  
nine years when deposient & her father & mother removed to Abbeville District  
in the State of South Carolina deposient there was raised ~ That deposients  
father & Mother had four children before deposient , namely~ Elizabeth, Richard,  
Sarah, & one other one who died in infancy before it was named~ Richard  
Stanfield married Martha Grimes & died sometime after his marriage left his widow  
who now resides some where in the State of Georgia to the best of deposients  
recollection~ that Sarah Stanfield yet resides some where in the State of Georgia and that deposients 
mother after her (deposients) birth had Eight children by deponents Father, to wit, William, Polly, John, 
Peter, James, Robert, George & Francis Stanfield of these children all grew to the age of maturity 
except Robert who died at the age of about nine years all of the rest are living except Peter to the best of 
my knowledge & belief Deposient saith that She is now about sixty two years of age and that from 
deposients infancy & as far over as her memory extends she states she was living with her said father & 
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mother John & Sarah Stanfield and always regarded them as husband & wife & never heard any thing 
to the contary that Deposients Father & Mother she further states that ___ from the time she could 
recollect till the death of deposients Father he having departed this life on or about the 8th day of 
September AD 1805 & that all the children referred to & Deposient have often heard of her Father & 
Mother speak of  & relate their ages deposient father states that she has often heard her said Father 
speak of being in the service of the United  
States as a soldier in the Revolutionary war & that he frequently spoke of the ___ & hardships himself 
& fellow soldiers had to under go & that deposient knows that in the neighbour hood where deposients 
Father & Mother resided till the death of her said Father it was never questioned or doubted but that he 
said John Stanfield was a Revolutionary soldier~ that he was always referred to as such & so 
recognised & spoken of by the neighbourhood where he resided but deposient does not recollect 
hearing him say whether or not he was in any battle during the Revolutionary war deposient further 
states that she always understood and believes that her said Father was a soldier of and in the 
Revolutionary war with Great Britain declared July 4th 1776  
and lasting about seven years or there about~  
The forgoing affidavit      }                     Jaine  (her mark) Ewing  
taken reduced to writing  }  
Subscribed and duly sworn                  }  
before me by affidavit this 5th of July }  
1848~ in the county of Tallapoosa       }  
& State of Alabama                                 }  
                                 Leroy Gresham   Judge of }  
                    the county court of the aforesaid }  
                    County in Alabama                         }  
The State of Alabama  }  
Tallapoosa County      }  I John A Jordan Clerk of the County Court  in said Tallapoosa County in the 
State of Alabama do hereby certify that Leroy Gresham whose genuine signature appears to the above 
affidavit is and was at the day of the date thereof Judge of the County Court of Tallapoosa County 
aforesaid duly Conferred and Qualified according to Law and that full faith and credit is and right to be 
given all his official acts and attestatory as such In Testemony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and 
seal this Sixth day of July AD One thousand eight hundred and forty eight  
                                          John A Jordan Clerk  
 
Tallapoosa, Al, Township 24, Page 122, 8 July 1850  
1798/1798 Thomas G. Ewing  30 M Farmer SC Married wihin the year  
          Mary T.          18 F        SC  
1799/1799 Jane Ewing       64 F        SC Can't R/W  
 
John Stanfield in Laurens, SC:  
 
DB F, page 291. 12/17/1792- Chas PARKS to Peter ROBERTS for 65 pounds, 100 a. on Mudlick Cr. 
part of gr. to Jno. DUNNAHO Senr. conv. to Cornelius DONOHOE then to sd C. P. Wit: Jno. 
STANDFIELD, Richd & George SHACKLEFORD. Chas. SMITH, J.P.  
{Peter Roberts was brother-in-law of John Stanfield, as was Richard Shackleford - Shackleford married 
a sister of John's wife Sarah (Roberts) Stanfiedl-RDH}  
 
DB A-1,page 65 Appr of est of Thos F BOYCE decd 8/3/1792. incl notes & accts on Richd 
SHACKLEFORD, Geo MADDEN, John GARRETT, Gee ANDERSON, Steven WOOD, Benj 
STONE, Richd HANCOCK, Geo WATTS, Elijah BURGESS, John ADDAMS, Wm CRAGE, Wm 
CHANDLER, appr not named.  
DB A-1,page66 Sale of same, 8/23/1792. Purch:Zachariah CARWILE, Richd HANCOCK, Abner 
BABB, Nath DRUMMOND, Andw RODGERS, Drury BOYCE, Clayborn SIMS, John HUTCHISON, 
John STANDFIELD, Danl BLANE, Natty GEAR, Danl METHENEY, John DEACUS(DACUS), John 
RICHEY, Joseph RODGERS, Saml EAKINS, John RODGERS, Herasha WALKER, Hugh 
CRUMWILL, Wilson BRYANT, Zach BAILEY, A RODGERS, David McCAA, Andw ANDERSON, 
Wm ANDERSON, David ANDERSON, John McMAHAN, Lewis BANTEN, Wm COLEMAN, Wm 
WHITEHEAD, Peter SMITH, Moses MADDEN, John GRIFFIN, Patr CUNNINGHAM, John 
ARNOLD, John DENDY, Wm CRAGE, Wm LOWE, John MILAM, David CAULDWELL, John 
FIELDS, Ansel McGEE, Wm CULBERSON, Chas HARVEY, Amos STRANGE, Harley SHAW, 
Isaac BAILEY, Wm McFEARSON, John HUGHES, Peggy DURHAM, Wm BAILEY, John GRIFFIN, 
Wm DONOHOW, Edmond GREENAGE, Jeremiah GREEN, Wilson OBRIAN (BRYANT?) John 
STEVENS (Almost 4 pages).  
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DB E,page 124 12/6/1793 - 2/17/1794 Langston DREW & w. Nancy to John STANFIELD for 150 
pounds stg. 150 a. on Beaverdam Cr. b. on Andw RODGERS, Jeremiah GLENN, GOOD's corner, Jas. 
CLARDY. Wit: Silvanus WALKER, Joshua ROBERTS. Joseph DOWNS, J.P.  
 
DB E,page 230 2/20/1794-5 - 5/13/1794. . Abner BABB (&w. Martha) pl. oldest son & heir of Joseph 
BABB decd. to Joseph BABB for 10 sh, 293 1/2 a. on Beaverdam Cr. of Little R. b. on FULLER, 
Jeremiah GLENN, RODGERS, sd A.B., parts of grs. 1)200 a. 1767 to J.B. decd; 2) 150a. to Wm 
WRIGHT 1771. Wit: Jno. STANFIELD, Jas. CULBERTSON, Jas. BABB, Wm. HUNTER.  
 
DB H,page 129 8/9/1794-2/21/1806. John STANFIELD & w. Sarah to Isaac MITCHELL of Abbeville 
Co. for 100 pounds; 150 a. on Beaverdam Cr. of Little R. whereon J.S. now lives. b. on Jeremiah 
GLENN, James CLARDY. Wit: Z. Rice, A. RODGERS Junr., John RANY, Wm MITCHELL, 
J.Q.D.R. of Sarah STANFIELD.  
 
DB D-1, page 250 Date?- Christopher ROWLAND decd. sale g. & ch. purch: Alexr WINN, Abram 
HALL, Barth CRADDOCK, Wm WINN, Robt ROWLING, Jos BROWNLEE, Thos HARRIS, Jas. 
PASLEY, Jno. STANFIELD, Minyard HARRIS, Joel BURGESS, Thos. POWELL, Wm HOWEL, Jas. 
YOUNG, Wm FOWLER, Thos NICHOLS, Elisha BROOKS, Porter CULBERTSON, Richd CARTER, 
Danl RODGERS, Youngset DENDY, Jno BROWN (to page 251) Jas. MOOR, Joel NEELLY, Jerh 
CONANT, Saml LEAK, Tabitha ROWLAND, Danl MITCHEL, Wm DENDY, Moses IRBY, Jos 
HOLLINGSWORTH, Wm CARR, Jos FARIS, Wm WALKER, Wm. BAILEY, Wiley MYLUM, Saml 
RODGERS, Nancy LEFOY(?) Ex.Robt ROWLING.  
   
 

 
5. vi. WILLIAM A. "BILLY" STANFIELD, b. 2 Feb 1787, Randolph County, NC; d. Aft. 1870. 
 vii. MARY "POLLY" STANFIELD, b. circa 1790; m. JAMES WEST. 
6. viii. JOHN S. STANFIELD, b. 1795; d. 4 Nov 1867, Wayne County, Tennessee. 
 ix. PETER H. STANFIELD, b. 1796; d. Bef. 1848. 
 x. JAMES M. STANFIELD, b. 1798; m. CATHERINE W. EDDLEMAN, 3 Mar 1825, GA - Newton Co.. 

 
Notes for CATHERINE W. EDDLEMAN: 
NC Lincoln County   Deed Book 24:16  
Apr. 5, 1808 (Rec. and acknowledged Jul. 1809)   David Eddleman (Lincoln Co.) to Joseph Graham 
(same); for $400 sold 250 ac on Mississippi Br. of Leepers Cr; border: a red oak in a bottom South 
branch & near a ford and crosses the branch; granted Sept. 12, 1787 to Thomas Anderson jr who sold to 
John Cleopard who sold to Conrod Lear who sold to David Eddleman. [signed] David Eddleman; 
witness Samuel Harwell [or Lemuel Harwell], Hubert Harwell, & James Morey.  
 
Georgia Notes:  
 
Mar 3, 1825  
Newton County – James Stanfield md. Catherine W. Eddleman (d/o David & Elizabeth Eddleman)  
 
1829  
Abstracts of Newton County estate records of David Eddleman (58 documents)  
According to a receipt for $9 from William D McCracken for making a coffin and materials for the 
burial of David Eddleman, it appears he died in March 1829 without a will. Elizabeth and Moses 
Eddelman were issued letters of    administration May 4, 1829, and posted a bond of $4,000 secured by 
Richard Stanfield, William Moore, Charles M .Berry, Barnabas Pace and Richard Kennon Jr. In July 
1829 John Eddleman was appointed administrator, and posted a     $4,000 bond secured by Jordan 
Thomaston, John Webb, John Witcher and Thomas Baker. An inventory was made Jul 7, 1829, and 
they held the estate sale the next day. Land and one negro woman were sold Jan 5, 1831 – Charles  
Sanders bought 52 acres Lot #102 9th district formerly in Henry, now in Newton County for $380 … 
Archibald E Lard bought 41 acres for $201 … Jacob Harman bought 49 acres for $300 … David 
Eddleman Jr. bought the old negro woman for $104.  
 
 On July 1, 1833, Elizabeth Eddleman was appointed Guardian of Elijah Eddleman, a minor son of 
David Eddleman dec’d. Elijah was over 14 years of age when he chose Elizabeth as his guardian. The 
reason given for being so late in     appointing a guardian for Elijah was because the administrator, John 
Eddleman, was distributing the money in the estate.  Each of the following heirs got $139.62:  
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    Reuben Eddleman  
    Elijah Eddleman (same as Eli S Eddleman who md. Delany Mabry 4/04/1857 Newton Co.?)  
    Elizabeth Eddleman, the widow  
    William Eddleman  
    Nancy Ann Eddleman  
    Moses Eddleman  
    David Eddleman Jr. (md. Martha E.P. Carroll 8/07/1857 Newton Co., by Richard Stanfield JP)  
    Archibald E. Lard/Lord  
    James Stanfield (md. Catherine W. Eddleman 3/03/1825)  
 
 
 
More About JAMES STANFIELD and CATHERINE EDDLEMAN: 
Marriage: 3 Mar 1825, GA - Newton Co. 

 
 xi. ROBERT STANFIELD, b. 1799; d. Bef. 1800, SC? Died at age 9 per sister Jane's affidavit. 
 xii. GEORGE RYLAND STANFIELD, b. 1801; m. IRENE PULASKA DAVENPORT, 2nd wife?; b. circa 1814, 

AL - Clarke. 
 
Notes for GEORGE RYLAND STANFIELD: 
1850 CENSUS, Civil Div 25, DeKalb Co., AL, p. 353, HH #371 
George R. Stanfield     M 49  Farmer $100  Unkown 
   Irena                              F   36                         GA 
       Pulaski  D.                M  16                           AL 
       Sarah E.                   F   14                          AL 
       Parthena E.            F    11                         AL 
       Emily M.                   F      9                          AL 
      William W.                M     7                          TN 
       Anna J.                    F     4                          TN 
   Sarah                          F   92                         VA 
 
 
 
Murray Co., GA 1849 
De Kalb Co., AL 1850-52 
Marshall Co., AL 15 Mar 1854 
 
Head of Household in Census in 1840, Murray County 
 
George R. Stanfield 
Male 5-10 (1) *researching name* 
Male 10-15 (1) *Pulaski* 
Male 30-40 (1) *George* 
Female Under 5 (3) *Sarah, Parthena, Emily* 
Female 20-30 (1)*Irena (second wife)* 
 
 
Head of Household in Census of 1850, Civil Divn 25, DeKalb Co, AL; p.353, household #371 
 
George R Stanfield M 49 Farmer $100 Unk 
Irena F 36 GA 
Pulaski D M 16 GA 
Sarah E F 14 AL 
Parthena E F 11 AL 
Emily M F 9 AL 
William W M 7 TN 
Anna J F 4 TN 
Sarah F 92 VA 
 
The wife is alleged by some researchers to be his second, named Irena Pulaski Davenport, hence the 
name of the son shown here. Record via the image on Disk 1 of CD#453. 
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As one can see from the birthplaces of the children, this family moved around a bit. Mary Lu Johnson 
has posted on GenForum that she has found a record on microfilm showing from publication in the 
_Southern Recorder_, Milledgeville, GA, 3 Dec 1827, George R Stanfield filed for divorce from his 
first wife Elizabeth in Newton Co, GA Superior Court. Defendant was a non-resident [of Newton 
County ??]. 
 
The Census finding noticed above is quite nice. When Sarah Roberts applied for a RW pension as 
widow of John Stanfield in 1835, she specified that she was living with her son George. She survived 
until 1854 and thus the Census finding definitively proves who this George was. 
 
 
Georgia To the Sheriff of Newton County Greeting 
George R. Stanfield vs Elizabeth Stanfield. The defendant is hereby required personally or by attorney 
to be and appear at the next Superior Court to be held in and for the County of Newton on the fourth 
Monday in September and must there and then to answer the plaintiffs demand in an action of libel for 
divorce, as in default thereof the said court will proceed and Justice shall assertain [ascertain]. Witness 
the honorable Charles I McDonald Judge of said court this 24th August 1827. [s/s] John H. Trimble, 
Clk 
 
The defendant not to be found in this county this 27th [blank] 1827 [s/s] L P Macky ? Shefff George R 
Stanfield vs Elizabeth Stanfield libel for Divorce\ 
 
Testimony in the above case. 
Peter H. Stanfield sworn says that he was present at the marriage of the plaintiff and defendant in South 
Carolina in Abbeville District. They lived together about a month and an half. When she left him 
without any provocation that he remembers staid out all night & returned the next day & has not lived 
with him since. Sarah Stanfield Sworn says that she lived with her saw that she knows of no 
provocation which he gave his wife to leave him. One evening when he was gone from home She 
walked out and I came home about dark dusk & he asked her where she had been. She replied she had 
been about & about & he asked her a second time where she had been & she replied that he had always 
gone when he pleased and she intended to the same. He then said perhaps she might go when she 
pleased but not come when she pleased. She than began ?the Witness Supposed to separate the cloths 
which hung on a pole he then spoke to her and said she aught not to do so. She then quit pulling down 
& went out and Witness saw her no more till next morning when she returned & went into his brothers 
house but did not come into her own where he was. He had been bleeding at the nose all night and did 
not expect to live they did not speak together. She after a little while went off & spent all day & came 
home in the evening got her clothes & went off & never came back to him again of her own accord. He 
went & coaxed her home once but she would not stay with him. Witness has seen defendant sit & as 
many as twice and lament having left Thomas Holden with whom and his mother she had lived during 
her absence from her husband. James Miller sworn Says defendant had a house built about a mile from 
his witness residence [NOTE: "witness" was probably added for clarification here and in the testimony 
of Sarah; i.e. whose house? Witness', but they didn't use parentheses] and had seen her and Thomas 
Holden then together in the daytime. There was a child then she afterward moved a way out of the 
settlement since which time he had seen her with two children besides the one, which she had when he 
first saw her. He inquired for Holden and she said he was at home. Witness did not know of Holden 
having any other home besides the house of Defendant. Eli Thornton sworn says that he had seen her in 
the road with a child. She said that she was living with Holden & that the children were his. [s/s] Esq. 
Charles I. McDonald Judge 
We find that sufficient proofs have been referred to our consideration to authorize a total divorce that is 
to say a divorce Vinci do matrimony upon legal principals between the parties in this case. 
 
Registered 10th March 1827 [s/s] Charles Kennan, Foreman 
 
Roger, 
Thanks so much for the excellant report on James and Sarah.  Very interesting!  I might mention that in 
the George Stanfield divorce petition - where his wife has been transcribed as Elizabeth Camp - after 
studying the handwritten document I think it should have been transcribed Canup.  This I believe is a 
corruption of Knop.  I think she was a dau. of Charles Knop (sometimes Knopt) of Abbeville, S.C.  
There are records where he left money to one Elizabeth Stanfield.  A son of Charles, Frederick, came to 
GA. where he was often listed as Canup.  Thanks again. 
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Wes 
 
More About GEORGE STANFIELD and IRENE DAVENPORT: 
Marriage: 2nd wife? 

 
 xiii. FRANCES "FANNY" STANFIELD, b. 23 Dec 1803. 
 
 

Generation No. 4 
 

4.  RICHARD
4 STANFIELD (JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, ROBERT

1) was born 1780.  He married MARTHA GRIMES Bef. 
1800 in SC/Abbeville?.  She was born Bet. 1774 and 1784. 
 
Notes for RICHARD STANFIELD: 
1800 Federal Census for SC/Abbeville 
Richard Stanfield        M: 0 0 1 0 0    F: 1 0 1 0 0     00 
 
1805 - Abbeville, SC 
STANFIELD, John - Box 87, Pack 2145 
Est. Admnr. Dec 12, 1805 by Richard, Sarah STANFIELD, Edward COLLIER unto Andrew HAMILTON 
Ord. Abbeville Dist. sum $5,000.00. inv. made Jan. 2, 1806 by Joshua HILL, Leonard WIDEMAN, 
Andrew CROZIER, sale Jan. 3, 1806. BYRS: Sarah STANFIELD Jr., Edmond BROWN, John TALBERT, 
Sarah STANFIELD, Sr., Lewis FREE, Jesse BARKER, Richard STANFIELD, Joshua HILL, Richard 
BEAZLEY. Since  both John and father William are deceased at this point,  it would appear that Sarah 
STANFIELD, SR., is the widow of William and Sarah  STANFIELD, JR., is Sarah Roberts, widow of 
John.  
 
Aug 12, 1819 
Walton County - Richard Stanfield was a member of the first grand jury ever assembled for Walton 
County. There were 506 men of voting age in the county at the time. 
 
1819   
Walton County Non-Slave owner Taxpayer - Richard Stanfield in Wagnon's Militia Dist 
 
1820 Census, Georgia, Walton Township, Reel 331-05, Pge 252 
Richard Stanfield Residence #456 (2 working agriculture) 
Males 0-10  2 (Believe this to be William and William L., sons of John S. Stanfield) 
Males 16-18 1(Believe this is Robert J. married and living with father.) 
Males 19-26  1(Believe this is John S. Stanfield) 
Males 26-45  1 (Believe this is Richard, husband) 
Females 0-10  3 (Believe this to be Emeline and Angeline, dau of John S. Stanfield) 
Females 10-16  2 
Females  19-26  2  (Believe one is Bethena Meyer, wife of Robert J.Stanfield,  
other Ellen, wife of John S. Stanfield) 
Females  26-45 1 (Believe this is Martha, wife) 
(There must be another family [possible brother John S. Stanfield and wife] 
living here or these are Richards Children) 
 ALSO IN WALTON CO., GA, IN 1820!!!!!! 
       James Harvel     0 0 0 0 1 0  0 0 0 0 0    1(5?) slave James 26-45 (1775-1794)   
       Joel Johnson     2 1 0 1 0 1  3 2 1 0 1       *Duplin Joel?? 
       James West       3 0 0 0 1 0  1 0 0 1 0  Sarah (Harvel's) brother-in-law??  
 
1820 Land Lottery 
Residents of Walton Co, former Jackson Co. area were allowed to draw in the 1820 lottery.  Richard 
Stanfield and William O. Wagnon won land in one of the 7 new counties. 
 
Nov 25, 1823 
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Henry Co DB C/D page 132 - Richard Stanfield JP, Robert Stanfield and David C. Nose witness Newton 
county deed from Farrell (Farrah?) H. Trammell of Newton County to James Keith … $500 for Lot #101 in 
District 12 of Henry County … Recorded Nov 9, 1824. 
 
1825 
James M. Stanfield, son of Capt. John Stanfield was married to Catherine Eddleman on 3-3-1825 in 
Newton County by Richard Stanfield, JP. Record #100092. 
 
1830 Census, Georgia, Newton County, Reel 331-1, Page 5 
Richard Stanfield 
Males 10-30       2 (Could be John S. and one of his sons) 
Males 50-60       1 (Richard) 
Females 17-20  2 (Could be Emeline and Angeline, dau of John S. Stanfield) 
Females 20-30  1 (Could be Ellen, wife of John S.) 
Females  50-60  1 (Martha) 
 
 
More About RICHARD STANFIELD and MARTHA GRIMES: 
Marriage: Bef. 1800, SC/Abbeville? 
  
Child of RICHARD STANFIELD and MARTHA GRIMES is: 
 i. [SON]5 STANFIELD, b. Bef. 1800. 
 
 
5.  WILLIAM A. "BILLY"

4 STANFIELD (JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was born 2 Feb 1787 in Randolph 

County, NC, and died Aft. 1870.  He married (1) MARY SMITH?.  She was born circa 1789 in NC.  He 
married (2) MARY A. COX/COCKS??.  She was born circa 1828. 
 
Notes for WILLIAM A. "BILLY" STANFIELD: 
 DEED RECORD BOOK 1 , PAGE 79-81 , COURTHOUSE, MELBOURNE, IZARD COUNTY, AR:  
   William Stanfield    }  
           to                       }  
   Phillip Coleman       }  
             This Indenture made and entered into Twenteth day of January A.D. 1869 by and between William 
Stanfield and Mary A. Stanfield his wife of the first part; and Phillip Coleman of the second part All of the 
State of Arkansas and County of Izard.  Witnesseth that the said William Stanfield and Mary A. Stanfield 
for and in consideration of Six hundred dollars to them in hand paid by the said Phillip Coleman receipt 
whereof hereby is acknowledged Have  granted bargained, Sold and conveyed and by these presents do 
grant bargain sell and convey unto the said Phillip Coleman his heirs and assigns forever the following 
described Lands and tenements Situate, Lying and being in the County of Izard and State of Arkansas and 
most particularly described as follows to-wit;  The South East fourth of the South West Quarter of Section 
Twenty three including a strip off of the South West fourth of the South West Quarter running Across the 
field with the cross fence.  South of the field opposite the cross fence And the North East fourth of the 
North Quarter of Section Twenty Six.  And the North West Fourth of the North West Quarter except a strip 
inside of the field on the South side of the field running from a rock corner opposite to the cross fence 
running westward, outside parallell running with the fence to a rock on the Section Line And North East 
Fourth of the North East Quarter of Section Twenty Seven Also a strip Twelve and one half Poles North of 
the Section corner off of the South East Fourth of the South East Quarter of Section Twenty two taking the 
said Strip off of the South side of said Fourth Also a Strip Lying between the field and North of the field 
extending to the North boundary Line out of the field and described more definitely Beginning at the North 
East Corner of the William A. Watson Tract of Land running west with the North boundary Line to a rock 
East of the branch from thence to a rock on the west bank of said  branch, thence East with the fence to a 
rock opposite to the cross fence thence Southward with cross fence to a rock opposite to the cross fence on 
the South side Thence on the outside parallel with the fence to a rock on the Section Line.  Thence North 
with the Section Line Twelve and one half poles beyond the corner, northward to a rock Thence west to the 
Harvel Tract Thence South and East for complement all in Township Sixteen containing One hundred and 
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Sixty Acres more or less, To  have and to hold the above described premises Lands and Tenements unto the 
the (sic) Said Phillip Coleman his heirs and assigns forever against the lawful claims of any and all persons 
or perso?? whatesoever  Witness Whereof we Subscribe our names day and date above written,  
         Wm Stanfield     (Seal)  
                        her  
         Mary A  X  Stanfield  
                      mark  
   State of Arkansas        }  
   County of Izard            }  
                              Be it remembered that on this 30 day of January A.D. 1869 personally came before me 
an acting and duly commitioned Justice of the peace within the County of Izard and State of Arkansas 
William Stanfield to me well known to be such and acknowledged that he executed the foregoing deed for 
the use and Purpose therein mentioned and set forth and also at the same time and place came Mary A. 
Stanfield his wife who being examined by me apart from her said husband and acknowledged that she had 
executed the same of her own free will and for the set use and purpose therein mentioned and set forth 
without compulsion or undue influence of her husband.  Given under my hand the day and year above 
written-  
         S.H.Wren       J.P.  
   Filed 16 and recorded 19 of December 1889  
        W.K.Estes Clerk and  
        Ex officio recorded  
 
The following is a list of William b/o Sarah's family from the LDS. 
William STANFIELD b:2 Feb 1787 d:Unknown married Mary (Stanfield GenForum says SMITH) b:1789 
Children: 
 Lucinda b:15 Nov 1811 d:23 Apr 1889 
 James W. b:1814 d:Aft 1850 
 Elisabeth Ann b:1817 d:Aft 1863 
 Payton S. b:1824 
 Prissy Jane b:1826 d:1909 
 Nancy R.. Elethy b:1828 d:Jan 1901 
 
Peyton Stanfield bought land in Stone County in 1861. Named for Peyton Harwell?? 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
TN / Wayne County 
 
[page 193] Monday, September 1st 1851  
 
State of Tennessee§ Be it remembered that a quorum County Court was begun 
and held in and for Wayne County at the Court house in the town of 
Waynesboro on the first Monday being the first day of September in the year 
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and fifty one there were present and 
presiding the following justices of the peace of said County to wit David J 
JONES, Chairman George W BARKER & William M LAFFERTY 
 
Sufficient cause appearing to the Court for the same it is ordered by the 
Court that the venerefacious heretofore issued from this court be so 
changed that James D COPELAND be appointed instead of James COPELAND and that Alexander M 
CRAVEN be appointed instead of James W. STANFIELD and William J HADDOCK be appointed instead 
of Josiah DARBY and that the sheriff of Wayne County summon the persons so appointed instead of those 
who were heretofore appointed as in the original order specified 
 
William STANFIELD presented the Nuncupative Will of James W. STANFIELD 
deceased: when it appearing to the Court that fourteen days have not 
elapsed since the death of said James W. STANFIELD It is therefore ordered 
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by the Court that said Nuncupative will (which had been reduced to writing) 
be filed with the Clerk of this Court and that process issue calling in the 
next of kin, (that is to say John J. WOODY & wife Nancy Jane and Elizabeth 
M. STANFIELD, Peyton A. STANFIELD, Elijah B. STANFIELD John STANFIELD & 
Lucinda M. STANFIELD all of whom are minors under the age of twenty one 
years except the said John J. WOODY and wife) at the next term of this 
court to contest said will if they think proper, and that John STANFIELD be 
appointed guardian ad litem for said minor heirs and represent them at the 
said next term of this court. 
 
 
[page 208 - Monday November 3 1851] 
 
Came William STANFIELD & John W. SHULL executors of the estate of James W. 
STANFIELD Deceased and returned into Court an Inventory and Account of Sale 
of said estate verified by their oaths which were received by the Court and 
ordered to be recorded 
 
 
William STANFIELD Exparte§ Petition to sell land 
Be it remembered that this cause came on for further hearing this day before the worshipful A 
MONTAGUE C. B. McLEAN and Wm M. LAFFERTY Jusices &c holding the County Court for Wayne 
County upon the petition exhibited Order of reference and report of the Clerk & Master which report is not 
excepted to and from which it appears to the Court that said petitioners the children and heirs at law of 
James W STANDFIELD are the owners of the undivided one half interest in and to the tract of land 
mentioned and described in said petition and exhibits and that the same is unfit for cultivation and is so 
situated that it is no value for timber to the other lands belonging to said heirs and that it is only Valuable 
on account of the timber situated upon it and that it would be manifestly to the interest of said minor heirs 
that the same be sold. It is therefore ordered and decreed by the Court that the Clerk & Master of this Court 
after having given thirty days notice by written advertisement at the Court house door and three other 
public places in Wayne County of the time and place of sale proceed to sell to the highest bidder at the 
Court house door in Waynesboro said undivided interest in said land to the highest bidder upon a credit of 
one year that he take note with good security for said purchase money and retrain a lien on said land until 
the purchase money is paid and that the report thereon to the April term of this Court All other matters 
being reserved until the coming in of said report 
 
MINUTES OF THE ROCKY BAYOU ASSOCIATION OF 1863 
The following are the minutes of the 23rd annual meeting of the Rocky Bayou Association of Lunenburg, 
Arkansas, September 25, 1863: 
The Rocky Bayou Association convened according to appointment with the Rocky Bayou Church, Izard 
County, Arkansas.  Introductory sermon by Elder Duren.  Roman 6 Chapter 27 vers. 
The Association was called to order by Edler (William) Stanfield, former moderator. 
Called for letters from the churches. 
After the reading of which, the association was organized by electing Elder Stanfield., moderator, and 
S.{sic-below it appears to be "J."} W. Cockran, clerk.  Invited brethren in the ministry to seat with us 
which was accepted by Elder L.R. Furgeson of Yentry County, Missouri.  Called for petetionary. 
On preaching Elder Gun and Deacons of Rocky Bayou, finance, Bro. Hays and W. Moore.  Adjourned until 
Saturday 9 p.m. prayer by moderator. 
Saturday, September 26: Met pursuant to adjournment prayer by Elder Brown, called the roll, read the 
constitution and decorum.  The rearrangement received adopted and committee discharged.  Resumed 
inventation to correspondents none.  Appointed correspondents none.  Appointed correspondents to sister 
associations to Independence, J.H. Oldham to White River.  Elder W. Stanfield on motion cease for the 
present to send correspondents to Black River, Concord, Union and Mt. Vernon associations.  That the next 
meeting of the association be held with New Hope Church.  Lawrence County, AR.  Commencing on 
Sunday before the fourth Sabbath in September 1864.  Elder Brown to preach the introductory sermon. 
On motion dispense with appointing anyone to preach missionary sermon and the taking public collection.  
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Adjournment to 2 p.m. During recess Elder Ferguson preached affable and interesting sermon.  Met 
pursuant to adjournment prayer by Elder Duren, the report of the committee on finance received, adopted, 
and committee discharged.  On motion the clerk to write and distribute a copy of the minutes of each of the 
churches and receive for his services the fund on hand $25.  Read and approved assembly, adjourned to the 
time and place above named. 
Prayer by Bro. Stephanson, William Stanfield, Moderator, J. W. Cockran, Clerk. 
 
 
Notes for MARY A. COX/COCKS??: 
Maiden name based on the fact that an older Mary Cox/Cocks was living with Mary in 1860 and 1870.  
Good possibility that she was her mother. 
 
  
Children of WILLIAM STANFIELD and MARY SMITH? are: 
 i. LUCINDA5 STANFIELD, b. 15 Nov 1811; d. 23 Apr 1889. 
7. ii. JAMES W. STANFIELD, b. 13 Feb 1813; d. 1851, TN - Wayne Co.. 
 iii. ELIZABETH ANN STANFIELD, b. 1817; d. Aft. 1863. 
 iv. PAYTON S. STANFIELD, b. 1824. 
 v. PRISSY JANE STANFIELD, b. 1826; d. 1909. 
 vi. NANCY R. STANFIELD, b. 1828; d. 1901. 
 
 
6.  JOHN S.

4 STANFIELD (JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was born 1795, and died 4 Nov 1867 in Wayne 

County, Tennessee.  He married ELENDER (ELLEN) UNKNOWN.   
  
Children of JOHN STANFIELD and ELENDER UNKNOWN are: 
 i. MARY5 STANFIELD, b. circa 1820. 
8. ii. WILLIAM STANFIELD, b. circa 1831. 
 iii. EMELINE STANFIELD, b. circa 1835. 
 iv. ANGELINE STANFIELD, b. circa 1836. 
 
 

Generation No. 5 
 

7.  JAMES W.
5 STANFIELD (WILLIAM A. "BILLY"

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was born 13 Feb 1813, and 

died 1851 in TN - Wayne Co.. 
  
Child of JAMES W. STANFIELD is: 
 i. NANCY JANE6 STANFIELD, b. circa 1835; m. JOHN J. WOODY; b. Bet. 1826 and 1829. 
 
 
8.  WILLIAM

5 STANFIELD (JOHN S.
4, JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, ROBERT

1) was born circa 1831.  He married 
ELIZABETH WOODY.  She was born circa 1831. 
 
Notes for WILLIAM STANFIELD: 
1860 Federal Census WAYNE COUNTY, TENNESSEE, CIVIL DISTRICT 7 
 
265 265 Stanfield William 29 M Farming --- 400 TN  
265 265 Stanfield Elizabeth 29 F TN 
265 265 Stanfield James 4 M TN 
265 265 Stanfield Mary F. 2 F TN 
265 265 Stanfield Martha 1 F TN 
  
Children of WILLIAM STANFIELD and ELIZABETH WOODY are: 
 i. JAMES6 STANFIELD, b. circa 1854. 
9. ii. MARY F. "MOLLY" STANFIELD, b. Jun 1857. 
10. iii. MARTHA J. STANFIELD, b. 9 Feb 1859, Wayne County, Tennessee; d. 11 Jan 1950, Oklahoma. 
 iv. SARAH A. STANFIELD, b. circa 1861. 
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 v. ELIZA A. STANFIELD, b. circa 1863. 
 
 

Generation No. 6 
 

9.  MARY F. "MOLLY"
6 STANFIELD (WILLIAM

5, JOHN S.
4, JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, ROBERT

1) was born Jun 1857.  
She married (1) STEPHEN HENRY MOSS, son of JOHN MOSS and LOUISA CARTWRIGHT.  He was born 27 
Oct 1849, and died 22 Nov 1932.  She married (2) G. W. MORRIS 31 Jan 1923.  He was born circa 1854. 
 
Notes for MARY F. "MOLLY" STANFIELD: 
Mary Moss 65 
m. Jan 31, 1923 
G. W. Morris 69 
both from Hedges 
 
 
Notes for STEPHEN HENRY MOSS: 
 
 
Izard County 1880 Census 
 
MOSS Stephen K M 30 head Farmer MS TN MS  
28/5 Mary F F 22 KHouse TN TN TN  
Wm J M 6 son AR MS TN  
James M M 3 son AR MS TN  
John H M 1 son AR MS TN  
STANFIELD, Eliza J F 48 KHouse TN TN TN  
28/4 Martha J F 20 daughter TN TN TN  
Sarah A F 19 daughter AR TN TN  
Eliza A F 17 daughter AR TN TN  
 
 
1900  Izard Census Athens Twp.#15/15: 
MOSS, Stephen H.  Oct 1849   50 md 27 
  Mary F.                 Jun 1857   42  md 27  10/8 
 Sarah M.                Feb 1885   15  
 Murry A.                 Dec 1887   12 
 Charlie E.               Jul 1891     8 
 Elizabeth                Dec 1894  5 
 Thomas A.              Sep 1897   2 
HANKS, Lettie  ldgr  Feb  1884  16 
 
1910 Northwest 
# 38 Moss 
Henry 60 md 1 time md 37 years 
Mary 52 had 10 children 8 living 
Elizabeth 15 dau 
Auston 13 son 
 
 
More About G. MORRIS and MARY STANFIELD: 
Marriage: 31 Jan 1923 
  
Children of MARY STANFIELD and STEPHEN MOSS are: 
11. i. WILLIAM J.7 MOSS, b. circa 1874; d. 17 Sep 1947. 
 ii. JAMES M. MOSS, b. circa 1877. 
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 iii. JOHN H. MOSS, b. circa 1879. 
12. iv. MINNIE ARA ELVIRA MOSS, b. 25 Sep 1880; d. 12 Nov 1949. 
 v. EDWARD MOSS. 
13. vi. SAMUEL W MOSS, b. circa 1882. 
14. vii. SARAH M MOSS, b. Feb 1885. 
15. viii. MURRAY A MOSS, b. Dec 1887. 
 ix. CHARLES E MOSS, b. Jul 1891. 
16. x. ELIZABETH "PET" MOSS, b. Dec 1894. 
17. xi. THOMAS AUSTIN MOSS, b. 13 Sep 1897; d. Aug 1976. 
 
 
10.  MARTHA J.

6 STANFIELD (WILLIAM
5, JOHN S.

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was born 9 Feb 1859 in 

Wayne County, Tennessee, and died 11 Jan 1950 in Oklahoma.  She married (1) UNKNOWN WILSON Bef. 
1881.    She married (2) JOHN R BUTLER Bef. 1894.  He was born Dec 1871 in Tennessee. 
 
Notes for MARTHA J. STANFIELD: 
Posted by Vera Reeves on ARIZARD: 
> Martha J Stanfield (Wilson and Butler) b: 9 Feb 1859 in Wayne Co.Tn d: 11  
> Jan.1950  in Newkirk, Kay, OK 
 
Arkansaas Prior Birth Index 
 
Izard County 
WILSON, THOMAS FRANKLIN 7/31/1881  
mother STANFIELD, MARTHA JANE  
 
Searcy County 
BUTLER, JAMES LEE ROY 9/12/1899  
mother STANFIELD, MARTHA JANE   
 
1900 Spring, Searcy County, Arkansas 
73 73 Butler John R       Head Dec 1871 28 TN TN TN 
                     Martha J    Wife  Feb 1861 39 TN TN TN 
          Wilson Thomas F S-son Jul 1882  17 AR TX TN 
                      Mary E      S-dau Feb 1884 16 AR TX TN 
                      Cora B      S-dau Jun 188  11 AR TX TN 
          Butler Jesse C     S-son  Oct 1894  5 MO TN TN 
                    JohnW       S-son  Dec 1896  3 MO TN TN 
                     James L    S-son Sep 1899 8m AR TN TN 
 
More About UNKNOWN WILSON and MARTHA STANFIELD: 
Marriage: Bef. 1881 
 
More About JOHN BUTLER and MARTHA STANFIELD: 
Marriage: Bef. 1894 
  
Children of MARTHA STANFIELD and UNKNOWN WILSON are: 
 i. THOMAS FRANKLIN7 WILSON, b. 31 Jul 1881. 
 ii. MARY E WILSON, b. Feb 1884. 
 iii. CORA B WILSON, b. Jun 1888. 
 
  
Children of MARTHA STANFIELD and JOHN BUTLER are: 
 iv. JESSE C7 BUTLER, b. Oct 1894. 
 v. JOHN W BUTLER, b. Dec 1896. 
 vi. JAMES LEE BUTLER, b. 12 Sep 1899. 
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Generation No. 7 
 

11.  WILLIAM J.
7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"

6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM
5, JOHN S.

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was 

born circa 1874, and died 17 Sep 1947.  He married IDA FERGUSON 8 May 1898 in Fulton County, 
Arkansas.  She was born 7 Nov 1874, and died 27 Jan 1953. 
 
Notes for WILLIAM J. MOSS: 
Jan 16 1920 New Hope Izard County Arkansas 
 
137 142 Moss William J    Head WM 50 M     TN TN TN 
                Ida                          Wife   WF 45          GA GA GA 
                Ewell                     Son    WM 17         AR TN GA 
                Verda                    Dau    WF 15 
                Mary                      Dau    WF 14 
                Orlie                       Son    WM 10 
                Hazel                     Dau   WF 5 1/12 
Sep 26, 1947 - Well Known Citizen of Oxford Passes Away 
      William J. Moss 78, citizen of Oxford the greater part of his life,  
died at his home at that place Wednesday night of last week. He was a member  
of the Methodist Church. Surviving, are his wife; two sons, Ewell Moss of  
Pratt, Kansas and Orlie Moss of Oxford; three daughters, Mrs Verda Burns of  
Anderson, Ind., Mrs Mary Hays of Wynnewood, Okla., and Mrs Hazel Turner of  
Wheeling, Ark. Funeral services were conducted at the Oxford Methodist  
Church Friday, with Rev R. E. Lee of Cave City officiating. Burial was in  
the Oxford Cemetery. 
 
 
Notes for IDA FERGUSON: 
Jan 30, 1953 - Mrs Moss Dies at Oxford Tuesday 
 
    Mrs Ida Elizabeth Moss of Oxford died in the Izard County Hospital at  
Melbourne, last Tuesday, January 27 at the age of 79. She was the widow of  
the late William Moss of Oxford. 
 
    Mrs Moss was born in Atlanta, Ga., and moved to Arkansas during early  
live. She married Mr Moss at Oxford in 1897. 
 
    Surviving are two sons, Ewell Moss of Pratt, Kansas, and Arley Moss of  
Oxford; three daughters, Mrs Verda Burns of Anderson, Ind., Mrs Mary Hays of  
Wynnewood, Kansas and Mrs Hazel turner of Wheeling, Ark.; one brother, Muncy  
Ferguson of Oxford of Cushing, Okla.; six grandchildren and one  
great-grandchild. 
 
    Funeral services were conducted in the Oxford Methodist Church Wednesday  
afternoon by Rev. Hugh Cooper of Harrison. Burial was at Oxford. 
 
 
More About WILLIAM MOSS and IDA FERGUSON: 
Marriage: 8 May 1898, Fulton County, Arkansas 
  
Children of WILLIAM MOSS and IDA FERGUSON are: 
 i. EWELL8 MOSS, b. circa 1903. 
 ii. VERDA MOSS, b. circa 1905. 
 iii. MARY MOSS, b. circa 1906. 
 iv. ORVILLE MOSS, b. circa 1910; d. Apr 1928. 
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Notes for ORVILLE MOSS: 
Calico Rock Progress - Apr 27, 1928 - Orville Moss Dead  
 
Orville Moss aged 18 after an illness of only a few days died at the home of his father at the Joe Harber 
farm east of here, Thursday night of last week, burial taking place at Pleasant Grove Sat. He had been 
suffering of diabetes for several months. 

 
 v. HAZEL MOSS, b. circa 1915. 
 
 
12.  MINNIE ARA ELVIRA

7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"
6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM

5, JOHN S.
4, JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, 

ROBERT
1) was born 25 Sep 1880, and died 12 Nov 1949.  She married WILLIAM DANIEL "DANAL" HENDRIX 

2 Oct 1898 in Independence County, Arkansas.  He was born 1 Oct 1873, and died 30 Jan 1954. 
 
Notes for WILLIAM DANIEL "DANAL" HENDRIX: 
Hendrick, W. D. 25 of Cushman 
m. 2 Oct 1898 Stone County 
Miss M. E. Moss 18 of Independence County 
 
 
1900 Stone County Northwest Twp 
family # 25 Hendricks 
Daniel b. Oct 1873 md 2 yrs AR KY IL 
Minnie bron Sep 1880 (1-1) AR MS AR 
Mary born Dec 1899 dau 
Sarah A. born Jan 1827 wd IL TN TN 
 
 
Stone County 
1910 NorthWest Township 
# 41 Hendrix 
Daniel 36 md 11 yrs  AR TN TN 
Minnie 29  (6-6) AR AR AR 
Mary 10 AR AR AR dau 
Elizabeth 9 """"""" dau 
Henry 7 """"""""""" son 
Ruth 5 """""""""" dau 
Genevery 2 """"""" dau 
Shelton 2/12 """" son 
also living in this house hold 
Reeves, Margaret 19 AR IN IA niece 
Reeves, William 20 AR AR AR uncle 
it shows his as uncle and her niece ??? 
 
 
1880 Census Barren Creek, Baxter, Arkansas 
Sarah J. HENDRICKS Self  52 IL -- -- 
Mary HENDRICKS Dau  24 KS KY IL 
Rebecca A. HENDRICKS Dau  22 KS KY  IL 
John F. S. HENDRICKS Son 19 MO KY  IL 
Margaret L. HENDRICKS Dau 16 MO KY IL 
Richard G. HENDRICKS Son 14 MO KY  IL 
Sarah C. HENDRICKS Dau 12 MO KY  IL 
Nellie F. HENDRICKS Dau 10 MO KY IL 
William D. HENDRICKS Son  6 MO KY IL 
Martha J. LAURENCE Dau  28 MO KY IL 
Virtie E. BRATTON GDau  5 MO  --- MO 
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James W. LAURENCE GSon 4 MO MO MO 
 
R. G. Hendrix 23 
m. Dec 8, 1888 Stone County 
Mrs J. A. Hanks 25 
 
 
More About WILLIAM HENDRIX and MINNIE MOSS: 
Marriage: 2 Oct 1898, Independence County, Arkansas 
  
Children of MINNIE MOSS and WILLIAM HENDRIX are: 
 i. MARY ANN8 HENDRIX, b. 2 Dec 1899; d. Jul 1984; m. CHARLES HOUSE; b. 22 Nov 1887; d. 10 Sep 

1908. 
 ii. SARAH ELIZABETH HENDRIX, b. 26 Feb 1901; d. 1966; m. DAVID LEE CARTWRIGHT; b. 15 Jul 

1894; d. Jul 1972. 
 
Notes for DAVID LEE CARTWRIGHT: 
1930 Northwest Dist 16, Stone County, Arkansas 
45 46 Cartwright David     Head 35 MO OH IL 
                                 Sarah E Wife  29 AR US AR 
                                 Daniel W Son 12 AR MO AR 
                                 Ellen M    Dau 10 AR MO AR 
                                 Amy E     Dau    8 AR MO AR 
                                 Dora E    Dau   6 AR MO AR 
                                 David E   Son 3 11m AR MO AR 
                                  Minnie J Dau 2 3m  AR MO AR 
                                  John S    Son    6m  AR MO AR 

 
 iii. HENRY FORSTER HENDRIX, b. 26 Jul 1902; m. GRACE LAYTON; b. 26 Jul 1902; d. 31 Oct 1976. 
 iv. RUTH MAY HENDRIX, b. 13 Dec 1904; d. 31 Dec 1981; m. GEORGE C CARTWRIGHT; b. 29 May 

1891, Missouri; d. Jul 1981. 
 
Notes for GEORGE C CARTWRIGHT: 
George and David Lee Cartwright married sisters Ruth Mae and Sarah Elizabeth Hendrix. 
1930 Northwest Dist 16, Stone County, Arkansas 
53 54 Cartwright George C       Head 39 MO OH IL 
                                  Ruthie M        Wife   25 AR US AR 
                                  Opal P            Dau     7 AR MO AR 
                                  Marie              Dau    6 AR MO AR 
                                  Edwin F         Son     4 AR MO AR 
                                 Wesley H        Son    2 AR MO AR 
                                 Georgia M     Dau 10m AR MO AR 
                                 George W  Father 73 OH US OH widower 
                                 John W           Bro   45  MO OH IL 

 
 v. HYMOTH GENEVERA HENDRIX, b. 10 Sep 1908; d. 15 May 1943; m. ELIJAH SARTIN; b. 5 Dec 1901; 

d. 17 Jan 1955. 
 
Notes for ELIJAH SARTIN: 
1910 Izard County 
Sartin 
Isaac N. 39 AR 
Eliza J. 31 MO 
Joseph T. 15 AR 
Timothy E. 12 
Elijah 8 
Nora A. 5 
Bertha L 2 
 
1920 add 3 more sons 
Homer 9 
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Sylvester 6 
Frank 3 
 
 

 
 vi. GEAMS SHELTON HENDRIX, b. 12 Mar 1910; d. 31 Jul 1994; m. NORA ESTER MILTON; b. 29 Sep 

1909; d. Feb 1981. 
 vii. CLIFTON HENDRIX, b. 17 Aug 1912; d. 17 Aug 1912. 
 viii. OLA FRANCES HENDRIX, b. 19 Jan 1915; d. 18 Dec 1993; m. CECIL DOWDLE. 

 
Notes for OLA FRANCES HENDRIX: 
From DOWN MEMORY LANE III by Betty Guthrie McCollum and Sue Shell Chrisco, an excerpt 
from a story by Ola Frances Hendrix. 
 
In the year 1915, on January 19th, a baby girl was borned to the Hendrix family, and was named Ola 
Frances. 
There was seven older childrenl; Mary Ann, Sarah Elizabeth, Henry Forster, Ruthie May, Hymoth 
Genevra, Geams Shelton, and Clifton (deceased).  Then some three years later, Earl Edward was 
borned, living only seventeen months, Earl had a glandular condition that kept his little body from 
growing, but his head grew rapidly.  He could walk only by pushing a chair over the floor. 
I remember the morning well when he was taken from us.  He ate a little breakfast.  He wanted to eat 
out of the plate Forster had eaten out of.  Then he wanted mom to rock him in the rocking chair, and she 
did.  He whimpered and whined some, then got quiet.  Mom looked down; her baby had gone to 
Heaven.  Forster and Geams was cutting wood nearby.  Genervra ran and got them, then the boys was 
sent to get a neighbor woman, as well as Grandma Moss.  Pop had gone to Fifty-Six, but came in 
around noon.  He went and knelt by the bed where the little boy lay, and cried his heart out.  I was 
around seven years old when this sadness hit our home.  Earl was a beautiful child, and at seventeen 
months could talk so plain, and was very intelligent.... 

 
 ix. WILLIAM AUSTIN "BILL" HENDRIX, b. 25 Feb 1918; d. 28 Mar 1979; m. WILLA MAE RUSH; b. 13 

Mar 1920; d. 9 Jan 1993. 
 x. EARL EDWARD HENDRIX, b. 8 Apr 1921; d. Died at 17 months of age (see story by sister Ola 

Frances).. 
 
 
13.  SAMUEL W7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"

6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM
5, JOHN S.

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was 

born circa 1882.  He married T. E. "LIZZIE" WILLIAMS 31 May 1905 in Stone County, Arkansas.  She was 
born circa 1889. 
 
Notes for SAMUEL W MOSS: 
Moss, S. W.  22  of Timbo, Stone County 
m. 31 May 1905 
Miss T. E. Williams of Stone County 
could the E be for Elizabeth and she was called Lizzie ?? 
 
 
Sam W. Moss and Wife Lizzie Sam W.Moss is the only one of the 
Mosses 
1920 Stone County 
You're right they are listed on Harris Bottom Road 
# 99-100 Moss 
Sam W. 38 AR MS TN 
Lizzie 31 AR AR AR 
Otho 11 AR AR AR 
Leo 9 AR AR AR 
Dio or Dlo 5 AR AR AR 
 
 
More About SAMUEL MOSS and T. WILLIAMS: 
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Marriage: 31 May 1905, Stone County, Arkansas 
  
Children of SAMUEL MOSS and T. WILLIAMS are: 
 i. OTHO8 MOSS, b. circa 1909. 
 ii. LEO MOSS, b. circa 1911. 
 iii. ALFRED DIO MOSS, b. circa 1915. 
 
 
14.  SARAH M7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"

6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM
5, JOHN S.

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was 

born Feb 1885.  She married JAMES E CHENNY.  He was born 1880. 
  
Children of SARAH MOSS and JAMES CHENNY are: 
 i. TROY8 CHENNY, b. 4 Apr 1907. 
 ii. ANGIS CHENNY, b. 13 Apr 1912. 
 iii. ORVILLA CHENNY. 
 iv. LESBIE CHENNY, b. 1911. 
 v. NINA CHENNY, b. 1919. 
 
 
15.  MURRAY A7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"

6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM
5, JOHN S.

4, JOHN
3, WILLIAM

2, ROBERT
1) was 

born Dec 1887.  He married MARGARET UNKNOWN.  She was born circa 1890. 
 
Notes for MURRAY A MOSS: 
1910 Northwest Township 
# 37 Moss 
Murry 22 md 1 time md 1 year 
Margaret 20 had 1 child 1 living 
 
  
Children of MURRAY MOSS and MARGARET UNKNOWN are: 
 i. EDDIE8 MOSS, b. 1910. 
 ii. OTTO MOSS. 
 
 
16.  ELIZABETH "PET"

7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"
6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM

5, JOHN S.
4, JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, 

ROBERT
1) was born Dec 1894.  She married WAYNE MILLARD GARRETT 21 Dec 1912 in Stone County, 

Arkansas.  He was born 28 Apr 1892, and died Mar 1971. 
 
Notes for WAYNE MILLARD GARRETT: 
Stone County marriages there was a 
Elizabeth Moss 18 
m. Dec 21, 1912 
W. M. Garrett 21 
 
 
More About WAYNE GARRETT and ELIZABETH MOSS: 
Marriage: 21 Dec 1912, Stone County, Arkansas 
  
Children of ELIZABETH MOSS and WAYNE GARRETT are: 
 i. ANNA8 GARRETT. 
 ii. WARREN GARRETT. 
 iii. ALFERD GARRETT. 
 iv. WILLARD GARRETT. 
 v. WILFORD GARRETT. 
 vi. WILLIAM GARRETT. 
 
 
17.  THOMAS AUSTIN

7 MOSS (MARY F. "MOLLY"
6 STANFIELD, WILLIAM

5, JOHN S.
4, JOHN

3, WILLIAM
2, 
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ROBERT
1) was born 13 Sep 1897, and died Aug 1976.  He married AGNES LAWRENCE.  She was born 18 

Apr 1901, and died Feb 1980. 
  
Children of THOMAS MOSS and AGNES LAWRENCE are: 
 i. LESBY8 MOSS. 
 ii. RICHARD ALONZO MOSS. 
 iii. CLIFFORD MOSS. 
 iv. CLYDE MOSS. 
 v. THOMAS MOSS JR. 
 vi. MARY JO MOSS. 
 vii. JANIES MOSS. 
 viii. JOHNNIE LEE MOSS. 
 


